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ﬁfU@e&s @aﬂ'&'ﬁ S CﬁOO[ ﬁﬂdn{ Dwayne Lemoine,, Superintendent
AVOYELLES PARISH 221 Tunica Drive West Carlos Mayeux. President
SCHOOL BOARD Marksville, LA 71351 Lizzie Ned, Vice-President

December 21, 2008

RE: Financial Statement Transmittal Letter
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

To the Elected School Board Members and
Citizens of Avoyelles Parish:

Louisiana law requires that an annual sworn financial statement be furnished to the Legislative Auditor
within six months of the close of each fiscal year in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
{(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) by a certified public
accountant. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
of the Avoyelles Parish School Board for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Management’s Representations

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Avoyelles Parish
School Board. Consequently, the Superintendent and the Director of Business Services assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a
reasonable basis for making these representations, we have established a comprehensive internal control
framework designed both to protect the School Board’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s financial statements in
conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Avoyelles
Parish School Board’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and
reliable in all material respects.

Independent Auditor’s Review of Financial Statements

The Avoyelles Parish School Board’s financial statements have been audited by Ducote & Company, a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance the financial statements of the Avoyelles Parish School Board for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008 are fairly presented in conformity with (GAAP). The independent auditors’ report is presented as
the first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the Avoyelles Parish School Board was part of a
broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agenctes. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance
with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the
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To the Elected School Board Members and
Citizens of Avoyelles Parish
December 21, 2008

administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s Single
Audit Reports.

Additional Information

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of
transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The Avoyelles Parish
School Board’s MD&A can be found immediately preceding the report of the independent auditors.

PROFILE OF THE AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

The Avoyelles Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.8) 17:51 to
provide public education for the children within Avoyelles Parish. The School Board is authorized by LSA-R.S.
17:81 to establish policies and regulations for its own government consistent with the laws of the state of
Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The School
Board is comprised of 9 members who are elected from 9 districts for terms of four years.

The School Board operates 13 schools within the parish, employs more than 775 teachers and other school
workers, and has a total enrollment exceeding 6,341 pupils. In conjunction with the regular educational
programs, some of these schools offer pre-kindergarten, special education and/or adult education programs. In
addition, the Schoo! Board provides transportation and school food services for the students,

The Annual Operating Budget serves as the foundation for the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s financial
planning and control. All administrators are required to submit requests for appropriation to the Director of
Business Services on or before February 20” of each year. Compilation of the budget is completed by the
Business Office and sent to the Superintendent for review and/or alterations by March 20™ of each year. The
final draft of the proposed Annual Operating Budget is presented by the Superintendent to the School Board at
its regular meeting in May of each year. This gives the Board Members at least 30 days to review the budget
before it is voted in an open meeting.

Before the budget is voted on by the School Board, the Budget/Finance Committee reviews the budget.
The Board is also required by Louisiana law to hold at least one public hearing prior to its adoption, to publish a
notice in the newspaper of the upcoming public hearing, and to make available to the public a copy of the
proposed budget at least 15 days prior to the public hearing. The public hearing and the vote by the elected
School Board Members on the Annual Operating Budpet is held on the first Thursday in June of every year.

The approved Annunal Operating Budget presents revenues by source and expenditures by function as
defined by the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education’s Bulletin #1929. The Superintendent
is authorized to transfer amounts between line items within a fund in accordance with proper accounting
procedure without approval by the Board. However, budget amendments are required when total revenues drop
5% or more below expectations, total expenditures exceed budget estimates by 5% or more, and when beginning
fund balance is less than 5% or more of its projected amount.

Budget-to-actua) comparisons are provided in this report for the General Fund and each individual Special
Revenue Fund.

Vi



To the Elected School Board Members and
Citizens of Avoyelles Parish
December 21, 2008

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the Avoyelles Parish School Board

operates.

Local econgmy: Avoyelles Parish ig located in the central arca
of Louisiana. It has a land area of 832 square miles. Interstate 49
runs north and south through the parish and the northern boundary of
Avoyelles Parish is approximately 30 miles south of Alexandria, the
largest metropolitan area of the region. The parish’s economy is
balanced among agriculture, timber, retail, and a land-based casino
owned by a local Indian tribe. Although the casino remits no taxes it
provides 12% of the net gaming revenues to the School Board.
Consistently low wealth and income levels, approximately 67% of the
national averages, and high unemployment rate of 5.9% coincide with
the School Board'’s shallow economic base.

Sales & Use Tax Collections
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Total sales and use tax collections for all nine governmental bodies in Avoyelles Parish exceeded $15.3
million in fiscal year 2007-08. Comparing total collections for the current fiscal year to the prior fiscal year
shows a 3,93 % increase. This figure is an overall average, however, and does not necessarily reflect individual

entities’ collections.
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To the Elected School Board Members and
Citizens of Avoyelles Parish
December 21, 2008

Student Enrollment Trends

Student enrollment, as shown in the bar chart below, impacts the budget in two ways: revenues received
from state and federal sources, and the staffing of employees.

On the revenue side, the Board receives state revenues based on the student count in grades kindergarten
thru the 12" grade from the prior fiscal year and is commonly called the Minimum Foundation Program (MFP).
The MFP is the State’s cost of educating students in Louisiana and is based on a formula that allocates money to
parish and city school systems.

On the expenditure side, the Board will reduce staff if the State does not increase the base per student
amount in the MFP and/or if there is a decline in student enrollment in grades K-12 from the prior fiscal year.

Even though students in grades K-12 decreased by 135 in FY 2007-08 from the prior fiscal year, the base
per student in FY 2007-08 increased to $3,752 per pupil. Included in the MFP for the 2007-08 fiscal year were

teacher and support payraises. The result of both changes increased total State MFP revenues $2,606,114 in FY
2007-08.

Property Tax Values
Property tax values affect the second largest source of revenues (ad valorem tax revenues) for the school

system. In fiscal year 2007-08, total property tax values in Avoyelles Parish increased 5 % to $145 million.
Taxable and homestead values reflect a minimal increases over the past five years as shown in the chart below.
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To the Elected School Board Members and

Citizens of Avoyelles Parish
December 21, 2008

Fiscal Taxable Homestead Total Increase
Year Value Yalue Value (Decrease)
2003-04 74,348,170 48,814,600 123,162,770 2.00%
2004-05 79,200,760 49,954,410 129,155,170 5.00%
2005-06 82,240,799 51,043,831 133,284,630 3.00%
2006-07 85,640,779 51,847,911 137,488,690 5.00%
2007-08 87,499,779 52,428,911 145,937,415 5.00%

Modest increases or decreases in property tax values are being forecasted for the next few years. Current
Maintenance and Operational ad valorem taxes of 9.6 mills will expire in 2019.

Long-term financial planning: Each year the administration adopts educational goals and objectives as a
vehicle to improve student learning. Thus, human and financial resources are allocated in the budget to achieve
the adopted goals, and to support educational programs and services defined by the Board’s mission. It is a
delicate balance of policy choices. It also represents a delicate balance between the educational needs of the
students and the ability of the community to provide the necessary financial support. Financial policies such as
reduction in personnel and redesigning transportation routes to achieve maximum cost savings had a significant
impact on the current period’s financial statements.

The No Child Left Behind Act and the State’s Accountability System have placed mandates in the area of
school performance in relationship to every student’s achievement. Every student is to meet the same
achievement objectives by 2014 irregardless of ability levels. With these mandates in place every school is
expected to show continuous academic growth in all subgroups of students. Improvement is driven through
several facets of funding as well as instructional areas such as special education, limited English proficiency,
remediation, enrichment, and instructional strategies for poverty students. Never before has there been this kind
of need to review achievement data in the areas of subgroups of students.

Avoyelles Parish’s goal is to not have a school in any level of School Improvement as defined by the State
of Louisiana. A school that does not meet or make adequate progress toward its Growth Target or Subgroup
Performance will enter into School Improvement. A school that enters into School Improvement will receive
additional support and assistance through school analysis, school level and district assistance team planning, and
individual school needs assessments. Schools meeting their growth targets and going beyond will receive
reward money to be dedicated to the school improvement process.

The following chart reflects the status of each school to the goal defined above at the beginning of the
2007-08 school year. Additional information may be viewed at the Lonisiana State Department of Education’s
web site http://www.doe.state.la.us/Ide/uploads/11484.pdf.
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To the Elected School Board Members and
Citizens of Avoyelles Parish
December 21, 2008

Perfori‘;:r(::: Score Growth Target
Schools .
B;?)e(:;ne G;:}] [‘g b Actual Expected Imps;fjlifz(:lent
(81)

Lafargue Elementary 858 952 + 94| + 47 —
Bunkie Elementary 65.0 79.3 + 143 | + 7.5 AAl
Bunkie Middle 64.6 554 - 92| + 7.4 -
Bunkie High 71.5 68.1 - 66| + 0.0 AAl
Marksville Elementary 724 81.5 + 91| + 6.4 AAl
Marksville Middie 69.0 74.7 + 70| + 5.7 AA
Marksville High 72.2 76.0 + 38| + 6.5 AAl
Cottonport Elementary 61.8 77.1 + 153 + 7.7 AALl
Plaucheville Elementary 91.6 1011 + 95| + 39 -
Riverside Elementary 73.8 81.6 + 78| + 6.3 AAl
Mansura Middle 76.6 70.1 + 65 + 6.8 AAl
Avoyelles High 813 854 + 41| + 53 -
LaSas High 71.8 70.3 - 15 + 6.7 AAl

Cash management policies and practices: All cash receipts of the Avoyelles Parish School Board are
deposited on a daily basis in interest bearing checking accounts and secured by the bank against loss. The banks
pledge securities to the School Board in excess of federal deposit insurance. These securities are held by a third
party bank, are released by the School Board by written request only, and must equal or exceed 110% of the
balance on deposit.

A portion of monies not immediately needed are invested in certificates of deposit (CD) . The maturities
of these CDs range from 30 days to 1 year, with an average maturity of 45 days. An average yield of 2.5.% was
achieved during the 2007-08 fiscal year as compared to 4% for the prior fiscal year. The remaining available
funds are invested in LAMP(Louisiana Asset Management Pool) which is similar to an interest- bearing liquid
account, The average rate of return on these investments for 2007-08 was 3% as compared to the prior year of
5.27%.

Risk management: The Avoyelles Parish School Board recognizes that there are certain risks or
liabilities that could be costly. Risk management is merely deciding how to best deal with those risks and to
manage the problem accordingly. Insurance and designated reserves are some of the ways to deal with those
risks.

The School Board lowers its potential risks by purchasing insurance policies for (1) property and casualty,
(2) errors and omissions, (3) general liability, (4) automobile liability, (5) employee fidelity, and (6) worker’s
compensation from companies that are approved by the Commissioner of Insurance for the State of Louisiana.
The total costs for such coverage for the year ended June 30, 2008 was $732,246.

The School Board also designated over the past few years $3,338,344 of its General Fund — fund balance
for future claims and contingencies, such as severance pay, and $1,094,589 for future annual leave payments,
X



To the Elected School Board Members and
Citizens of Avoyelles Parish
December 21, 2008

and other claims and contingencies.

Pension and other post employment benefits: The School Board provides a defined benefit pension
plan for its employees through two cost-sharing multiple-employer statewide plans. The School Board has no
obligations in connection with employee benefits offered through these plans beyond its annual required
payments to the plan.

The School Board sponsors, through the State of Louisiana, Group Benefits, post-retirement medical and
life insurance benefits for its retired employees. As of the end of the current fiscal year, there were 535 retired
employees receiving group medical benefits and 96 retired employees receiving group life insurance benefits,
which are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Avoyelles Parish School Board for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. This was the 6™ consecutive year
that the Avoyelles Parish School Board has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual
financial report. This report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the Business Department. We want to express our appreciation to all members of
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Aloysia C. Ducote, CPA, PC
Joan 8. Ducote, CPA, PC
D ucote & Compa ny Hope J. Gagnard, CPA, PC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of the
Avoyeiles Parish School Board
Marksville, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities. each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund of Avoyelles Parish School Board as of June 30, 2008, and for the year
ended, which coilectively comprise the Schooi Board's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the School Board's management. Qur
responsitlity is to express an opinian on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmen! Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perfarm the audit [0 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis of designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Schoo! Board's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the tinancial statements, assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating lhe financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respeclive financial position of the Avoyelles Parish Schoaol Board as of June 30, 2008 and the results of

its operations for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

tn accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated December 23,
2008, on cur consideration ot the School Board's internal control over linancial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control gver financial
reporting and campliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
conirol over financial reporting or on compliance. That repon is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, and should be censidered in assessing the resuit s of
our audit.
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Members of the Board
Page 2

The Management's Discussion and Anaiysis and the Budgetary Comparison Schedules as listed in the
table of contents on pages 4-18 and 49-51, are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but
are supplementary information required by the accounting principles of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Boarg. We have applied certain limited procedures. consisting principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion thereon.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Avoyelles Parish School Board's basic financial statements. The accompanying
supplementary information, presented in the table of contents as the introductory section, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, the schedules reguired by state faw, and the statistical
section, are presented for the purposes of additional analysis ard are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the
schedules required by state law, have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been
subjected 1o the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no cpinion an them.

Ducote & Company

Marksville, Louisiana
December 23, 2008
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOQOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008

We offer readers of the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Avoyelles Parish School Board for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal, which can be found on pages v-xi of this report. All amounts, unless otherwise
indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for the 2007-08 fiscal year include the following:

Statement of Net Assets — The assets of the Avoyelles Parish School Board exceeded its
liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $31,968,829 (net assets). Of this
amount, $16,519,697 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to mect the govemment’s
obligations to students and creditors.

Statement of Activities — The total net assets of the Avoyelles Parish School Board
increased by $2,106,943 for the year ended June 30, 2008. Most of this increase is
attributable to increased per pupil MFP amounts, sound fiscal practices by management
and the board, and savings by the staff.

Governmental Funds Balance Sheet — As of the close of the current fiscal vear, the
Avoyelles Parish School Board’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $20,304,791, an increase of $2,241,658 in comparison with the prior fiscal
year. The majority of this fund balance is comprised of approximately (1) $9.3 million
for spending within the General Fund, (2) $3.1 million within Special Sales Tax Fund, (3)
$1.5 million which is reserved for the payment of outstanding bond issues within the
Debt Service Funds, and (4} $2 million in other governmental funds.

General F'und’s Ending Fund Balance — At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
fund balance for the General Fund, a major fund, was $13,745,011, or 28% of total
General Fund expenditures. Approximately $4.3 million (designated) is set aside for
future claims and contingencies, while $9.3 million (undesignated) is available for
spending at the Board’s discretion. A substantial portion of this undesignated amount has
traditionally been set aside as a sales tax supplement for all employees to be distributed in
November of 2008.

Capital 4ssets — Total capital assets (net of depreciation) were $14,181,240 or 36.17% of the total
assets. The School Board uses these assets to provide educational services to children and adults;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.



AYOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008

Long-Term Debt — The Avoyelles Parish School Board’s total debt decreased $171,000 (8.7%)
during the current fiscal year. The key factor was a decrease in existing long term debt.

Qverview of the Financial Statements

The management discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Avoyelles
Parish School Board’s basic financial statements. The School Board’s basic financial statements
comprise three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial
statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed

to provide readers with a broad overview of the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

» The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Avoyelles Parish School
Board’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets.
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the Avoyelles Parish School Board is improving or deteriorating,

« The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the School Board’s net
assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave).

* Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Avoyelles
Parish School Board that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or
a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges(business-type activities).

The governmental activities of the Avoyelles Parish Schoo!l Board include general
government,

= The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19-20 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Avoyelles Parish School Board, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the Avoyelles Parish School Board can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008

»  Government funds. Govermnment funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources at the end of the fiscal year.

Such information may be useful in evaluating the Avoyelles Parish School Board near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
of the School Board’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds Balance
Sheet and the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities.

The Avoyelles Parish School Board maintains 24 individual governmental funds.
Information is presented separately in the govemmental funds Balance Sheet and in the
governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
for the General Fund and the Special Sales Tax Fund, which are considered to be the only
major funds. Data for the other 22 governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Avoyelles Parish School Board adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General
Fund and each individual Special Revenue Fund. Budgetary comparison statements have
been provided to demonstrate compliance with these budgets.

» Proprietary Fund. The Avoyelles Parish School Board maintains one proprietary fund,
Workers Compensation Fund. The Board is self-insured and funds work-related injury
costs. Because this service predominantly benefits govemmental functions, it has been
included with governmental activities in the governmental-wide financial statements.

»  Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit
of parties outside the Avoyelles Parish School Board. Fiduciary funds arc not reflected in
the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s own programs. The School
Board maintains one fiduciary fund named the School Activity Agency Fund.

Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential
to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements.



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the School Board'’s
compliance with budgets for its major funds. The combining statements for nonmajor
governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the Avoyelles Parish School Board, assets exceed liabilities by
$31,968,829 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s net assets total more than $13.98
million (43.74%) and reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery,
and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The
School Board uses these capital assets to provide educational services to children and adults;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Avoyelles Parish
School Board’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The Avoyelles Parish
School Board’s overall financial position has improved in the current year. The most significant
reason for the increase was sound financial planning by the school board and conservative
spending by administration.




AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008
Avoyelles Parish School Board’s Net Assets

June 30,2008 June 30, 2007

Current and other assets $ 25025152 § 22,349,328
Capital assets 14,181,240 14,118,773
Total assets 39,206,392 36,468,101
Current and other liabilities 4,466,960 3,770,234
Long-term liabilities 2,770,603 2,635,984
Total liabilities 7,237,563 6,406,218
Net assets:
Im:ie:;:d in capital assets, net of related 13,983,577 13,879,256
Restricted 1,465,555 1,253,162
Unrestricted 16,519,697 14,729,469
Total net assets $ 31,968,829 § 29,861,887

A portion of the School Board’s net assets of $1,465,555 are reported separately to show the
legal constraints for the payment of outstanding long-term debt obligations, for contingencies,
and to limit the School Board from using these funds for day-to-day operations. The remaining
balance of unrestricted net assets totaling $1,465,555 may be used to meet the School Board’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Governmental activities increased the Avoyelles
Parish School Board’s net assets by $2,106,943, which was a 7.06% gain in the net assets. Key
elements of this increase are as follows:




AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2008
Avoyelles Parish School Board’s Changes
in Net Assets
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $

Operating grants and contributions

General revenues;
Ad valorem taxes
Sales taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific

programs ~ Minimum Foundation Program
Interest on investments
Other general revenues

Total revenues

Expenses:

Instruction:
Regular programs
Special programs
Other instruction

Support services:
Pupil support services
Instructional staff support services
General administration
School administration
Business services
Plant services, including unallocated depreciation
Student ransportation services
Central services
Food services operations

Debt service — interest on long-term obligations

Total expenses
Increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Prior period adjustment
Net assets at beginning of the year, adjusted
Net assets at end of year b

Year End Year End
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007
0 0
2,597481 2,390,555
1,491,421 1,411,567
6,332,756 5,912,231
30,312,541 27,706,427
503,906 522,396
262,516 218,064
41,500,621 38,161,241
16,067,121 12,496,505
5,174,532 5,433,649
4,109,480 4,076,234
623,061 101,116
1,635,195 1,408,534
832,778 801,728
2,114,494 1,895,159
478,785 471,118
3,542,410 3,500,499
3,643,364 3,344,043
0 0
1,112,415 950,710
60,043 79,590
39,393,678 34,558,883
2,106,943 3,602,355
29,861,887 26,259,530
0 0
29,861,887 26,259,530
31,968,529 29,861,887




AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2008

® Grant and Contributions Not Restricted ®Ad Valorem Taxes ®Sales& Use Taxes Operation Grants and Contributions ®Other

Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted To Specific Programs: The single largest source of
revenue to the Avoyelles Parish School Board is reported in the “Grants and Contributions
Not Restricted to Specific Program” and is commonly called the Minimum Foundation
Program (MFP). The MFP is a distribution of approximately $2.9 billion to 69 public school
systems by the State of Louisiana for salaries and general operations. The State does not
provide money for building schools or retiring debt. The distribution is. based on a formula
adopted by the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education and approved by
the Louisiana Legislature. The chart below lists the actual increases or decreases in MFP
funds for the past 3 years.

Genarsl Fund F oosdc l;?e:i'ice
Fiscal Year Lasas Total MFP Increase (Decrease)
2005-06 25,241,129 981,042 1,753,567 27,975,738 1,715,233 6.5%
2006-07 25,464,845 441,042 1,800,540 27,706,427 (269,311) 1%
2007-08 27,973,031 441,042 1,898,469 30,312,541 (2,606,114) 9.4%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fune 30, 2008

In FY 2007-08, the School Board received $30,312,541 (61.11%) of its total revenues from the
MFP. These revenues are deposited in the General Fund, LaSas and the School Food Service
only. Most of the $2,606,114 or 9.4% increase resulted from an increased per pupil amount and
also teacher and support employee payraises included in the MFP.

Operating  Grants and Contributions: Operating grants and contributions totaled
approximately $12 million and are the second largest source of revenues for the School
Board. Federal grants represent approximately $9.3 million or 77.4% of the total while state
grants represent approximately $2.3 million or 19.36%. These grants and contributions are
specifically restricted to certain programs, and therefore, are netted against the costs of these
programs to show a true net cost. The chart below shows the operating grants and
contributions by funding source.

School Operating
Fiscal Food Title I Grants and Increase
Year Service Idea B Contributions Tatal (Decrease)
2005-06 2,246,934 4,410,171 1,543,708 5,200,943 13,401,756 16.9%
2006-07 2,557,636 3,160,308 1,454,877 4,871,052 12,043,873 (10.1)%
200708 2,721,540 2,987,258 1,487,233 4,945,771 12,141,802 (.1)%

In FY 2007-08, the School Board received 10.1% or $97,929 more in operating grants and
contributions. With such a slight increase, some grant revenues showed an increase and
other a slight decrease. School Food Service, Title 1, and Idea B Programs account for $7.2
million or 59.3% of the total operating grants and contributions receive.

» Sales and Use Tax Revenues: Sales and use tax revenues are the third largest source of
revenues for the Avoyelles Parish School Board. A 1%:% sales tax rate is levied upon the
sale and consumption of goods and services within the parish for public school
education. The chart below lists the sales and use tax revenues for the past 3 years.

11



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2008
Nonmajor
School Debt Nonmajor

Fiscal General Food Service Maintenance Total Increase

Year Fund Service Funds Funds Collections  (Decrease)
2005-06 3,741,034 103,976 0 1,667,068 5,512,078 10.9%
2006-07 4,036,495 156,213 0 1,719,523 5,912,231 7.26%
2007-08 4,215,221 156,213 0 1,961,322 6,332,756 7.11%

In FY 2007-08, the School Board deposited $6,332,756 of sales and use tax revenues into
the General Fund, School Food Service, Debt Service Funds, and Special Sales Tax Funds.
This represents 12.2% of the total revenues received. Total collections increased
approximately 7.11% or $420,525 in fiscal year 2007-2008 even though the rate did not
increase. Much of the increase was attributed to inflation and a slight increase in the
parish’s population.

» Ad Valorem Tax Revenues: Ad valorem tax revenues, also called property tax revenues, are
the fourth largest source of revenue for the School Board. Ad valorem collections are based
upon the number of mills (approved annually by the School Board} and the taxable assessed
value (established by the Avoyelles Parish Tax Assessor), subject to the limitations
approved by the voters and the Louisiana Legislature. The chart below lists the ad valorem
tax deposits for the past 3 years.

Nonmajor Nonmajor
Special Debt Total Ad
Fiscal General Revenue Service Valorem
Year Fund Funds Funds Taxes Increase (Decrease)
2005-06 799,551 432,228 70,125 1,301,904 24,768 0.2%
2006-07 870,430 471,083 70,054 1,411,567 109,663 8.42%
2007-08 922,719 500,730 67,973 1,491,422 ‘ 79,855 5.66%

In FY 2007-08, the School Board deposited $1,491,422 of ad valorem tax revenues into the
General Fund, Special Maintenance Tax Fund, and the Debt Service Funds. This represents
2.9% of the total revenues received. The General Fund received $52,289 more in property tax
revenues from the prior fiscal year while the Debt Service Funds received $2,081 less. The
decrease in property tax collections in the Debt Service Funds can be attributed to maturing
bonds and a decrease in indebtedness. The increase in total collections is due to increases in
property values.

12
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
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June 30, 2008

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities

Expenses are classified by functions/programs. The related revenues are comprised of specific
charges for the services and operating grants and contributions received to offset the expenses for
the specific program. The program revenues for fiscal 2008 directly related to these expenses
totaled $10,044,673, which, along with charges for services of $315,832, resulted in net program

expenses of $39,393,678. These net program expenses are funded by general revenues of the
School Board.

= Instruction: Expenses for regular programs, special programs, and adult/continuing education
are considered instructional services and relate to direct expenses of providing instruction to
students. Instructional services for fiscal year 2008 totaled more than $29.7 million or 59.9%
of total expenditures. As shown in the chart below, instruction services increased
approximately $3.4 million.

13
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2008
Fiscal Regular Special Other Instruction Increase
Year Programs Programs Programs Total (Decrease)
2003-06 14,316,270 4,885,983 5,760,428 24,962,681 (5.3%)
2006-07 14,939,920 3,196,263 6,173,074 26,309,266 5.4%
2007-08 18,840,129 4,724,307 6,162,023 25,726,459 12.9%

For FY 2007-08, employee salary step increases and higher employer retirement contribution
rates as well as health insurance costs increased instructional costs by $3.4 million.

Support Services: Support Services relate to those functions that facilitate the Instructional
Services. Support services include Pupil Support, Instructional Staff Support, General
Administration, School Administration, Business Services, Plant Services, Transportation
Services, Central Services and Food Services. Support services for fiscal 2008 totaled
approximately $20 million or 38.66% of total expenditures. The chart below shows that
Support Services increased 8.57% or $1,580,528 from the prior fiscal year. Particularly in the
transportation area, expenditures increased by $1.1 million due to increased salary and benefit
costs, the purchase of three school buses, and the rising cost of fuel. Other costs also
increased.

Instruct. Support
Fiscal Staff Plant Student Food Services  Increase
Year Support Services Services Service Other Total (Decrease)
2005-06 1,747,287 2,999,951 2,389,082 3,446,130 5,117,544 16,199,994 (8.3)%
2006-07 1,683,042 4,184,947 3,997,900 3,828,372 4,752,035 18,447,196 (13.9)%
2007-08 1,817,412 4,153,791 4,272,169 4,149,787 5,534,565 20,027,724 (8.57)%

Debt Service — Interest on Long Term Obligations: The remaining $58,401 (.1%) of total
expenditures consists of interest expense on long-term obligations. Interest on Long Term
Obligations decreased 22.21% or approximately $16,681 from the prior fiscal year and will
continue to decline each year until fiscal year 2011-12 when the last interest and principal
payments are due unless additional debt is issued.
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Interest on
Fiscal Long Term Increase
Year Obligations (Decrease)
2005-06 84,868 (7.01)Y%
2006-07 75,082 6.21H)%
2007-08 58,401 (22.21)%

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the Avoyelles Parish School Board uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The focus of the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s governmental funds is to provide information on

near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a School Board’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal

year.

As of the close of the cwrent fiscal year, the Avoyelles Parish School Board’s
governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $20,304,791, an
increase of $2,241,659 in comparison with the prior fiscal year. Increased sales tax
collections, the an increased per pupil MFP amount, and fiscally responsible
budgeting and spending by the Avoyelles Parish School Board accounted for the
majority of the increase.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Avoyelles Parish School Board.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the General Fund was
$13,745,011. The School Board has designated approximately $4.4 million of that
fund balance for future claims and contingencies, and compensated absences. The
remaining 67.7% or $9.3 million (undesignated) is available for spending at the
Board’s discretion, however, approximately $2.1 million of this amount has
traditionally been distributed to emplovees in the form of a supplement each
November.

Title I is a non-major special revenue fund and 1s used to account for grants and
related expenditures associated with providing educational opportunities to
educationally deprived children. For the fiscal year 2007-08, $2,987,258 was
received from a federal grant and expended to improve skills in reading, language
arts, and math.

The School Food Service is a non-major special revenue fund and is used to account
for revenues and costs associated with providing nutritious meals to school children
and employees. For the year ended June 30, 2008, the unreserved fund balance was
$601,653, an increase of $21,437 from the previous fiscal year. This unreserved fund
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balance is designated for unforeseen circumstances in the school breakfast and lunch
programs.

» The Debt Service Funds have a total fund balance of $140,936, all of which is
reserved for the payment of debt. A net increase of $18,790 occurred during the
current fiscal year due to the fact that the School Board’s debt is decreasing and will
continue to do so without future bonded indebtedness, however, greater than normal
tax collections were received.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original budget for the School Board was adopted on August 6, 2007. Differences between
the original budget and the final amended budget of the General Fund are as follows:

Revenues

= MFP revenues were originally budgeted at $27,535,871. No amendments were made.
Actual MFP was $27,973,031, an increase of $437,160.

Expenditures

*  Special Education program expenditures were originally budgeted at $4,539,665, and
reduced later to $4,454,882.

Other Financing Sources / Uses

* A year-end transfer of $995,000 was approved subsequent to year end by the Board to
transfer funds into a reserve fund for future needs of the school system.

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources over (under) expenditures and other
financing uses

* The original budget projected a deficit of $608,214 and was later amended and
projected to have a surplus of $97,587.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The Avoyelles Parish School Board’s investment in capital assets as of June 30,
2008 amounts to $14,181,240 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment, and construction in
progress. The table below shows the value at the end of each fiscal year.
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Avoyelles Parish School Board’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
2008 2007
Land $ 6777874 $ 6,777,874
Buildings, building improvements, and
land
Improvements 6,374,394 6,374,394
Furniture, equipment and vehicles 1,028,972 066,505
Construction in progress — buildings 0 0
Total $ 14,181,240 $ 14,118,773

Major capital asset events during the fiscal year included the following:
= No major capital expenditures occurred during the 2007-2008 fiscal year.

»  Depreciation Expense for the year (1) lowered buildings, building improvements,
and land improvements values and (2) reduced furniture, equipment and vehicle
values for a total 0of $1,238,463.

Long-Term Debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the Avoyelles Parish School Board had
total bonded debt outstanding of $1,803,000. Of this amount, $1,610,000 is backed by the full

faith and credit of the government. The following table summarizes bonds outstanding at June
30, 2007 and 2008.

Avoyelles Parish School Board’s Outstanding Debt

2008 2007
General obligation bonds b 193,000 § 234,000
Sales tax bonds 0 0
Certificates of indebtedness 1,610,000 1,740,000
Total $ 1,803,000 § 1,974,000

Long-term debt issues for fiscal year 2007-08 include the following:

» Total outstanding debt decreased $171,000 during the fiscal year. This 1s due to
bonds maturing in the past few years.

Louisiana statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the School Board
may issue to 35% of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for
the Avoyelles Parish School Board i1s approximately $72 million, which is
significantly higher than the $1.8 outstanding at June 30, 2008.
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For additional information regarding capital assets and long-term debt, see the notes to the basic
financial statements on pages 43-45.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The following economic factors were considered when the budget for FY 2008-09 was presented
to the Board:

» Information from the Avoyelles Parish Tax Assessor shows the ad valorem tax
collections will remain at $1.4 million. The land use of the parish is balanced
among agriculture, mining, timber, and manufacturing.

= Sales and use tax collections will increase to approximately $6.0 million.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Avoyelles Parish School
Board’s finances for all those with an interest in the School Board’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to Director of Business Services of the Avoyelles Parish School
Board, 221 Tunica Drive, Marksville, LA 71351, or by calling (318) 253-5982.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS)



Sta’ement A
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

Governmenial
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $21,580,351
Investments 575,000
Receivables 2,265,685
Intergovernmental receivables 450,656
Inventory and prepaid expenses 153,460
Capital assets:
Land 6,777,874
Capital assets, net of depreciation 7,403,366
TOTAL ASSETS $39,206,392
LIABILITIES
Accounts, salaries and other payables $4,445912
Interest payable 21,048
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 252,601
Due in mare than one year 2,518 002
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,237,563
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 13,983,577
Restricted for:
Debt service 1,465,555
Unrestricted 16,519,697
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 31,968.829

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement B
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

—-PROGRAM REVENUES-— Net (Expense)
Operating Capital Revenue and
Charges for Grants and Grants and Changes In
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Net Assets
ACTIVITIES
Governmental activities:
Instruction:
Regular programs $18,840,129 %0 $2,773,008 $0 $(16,067,121)
Special education programs 4,724,307 695,353 (4,028,954)
Vocational instruction 1,343,292 197,714 {1.145,578)
Other instruction 4,818,731 709,251 (4,109,480)
Support sources:
Student services 1,457,165 834,104 (623,061)
instructional staff support 1317412 282,217 (1.635,195)
General administration 978,506 143,728 (832,778)
School administrative service 2,479,433 364,939 {2,114,494)
Business services 561,418 82,633 {478,785}
Operation and maintenance of plant service 4,153,791 611,381 {3,542,410)
Student transpartation services 4,272,169 628,805 (3,643,364)
Foad services 4,149,787 315,832 2,721,540 {1,112,415)
Interest on long-term debt §0,043 Q {60,043)
Total Government $49, 754,183 $315,832 $10,044,673 $0 $(39,393,678)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 922,719
Property taxes, levied for maintenance and operations 500,730
Property taxes, ievied for debt service 67,972
Sales taxes, levied for general purposes 6,332,756
State revenue sharing, unrestricted 262,516
Grants and contributions not restricted 1o specific programs:
Minimum Foundatien Program 30,312,541
Interest and mvestment earnings 503,906
Miscellaneous 2,597,481
Total general revenues 41,500,621
Change in net assets 2,106,943
Net assets - beginning 25,861,886
Net assels - ending $31,968,629

The notes ta the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (FFS)



ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Interfund receivables
Intergovernmentai receivables
Inventory

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accaunts, salaries and other payables
Interfund payables
Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES

Reserved for:

Debt Service

Unreserved:

Designated for:
Contingencies
Compensated absences

Undesigated

Unreserved, reported in nonmajor

Special Revenue Funds

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2008

Statement C

Special Other Total
General Sales Tax Governmental Govearnmeantal
Fund Fund Funds Funds
$14,248,078 $3.098,384 $3,551,391 $20,897 854
0 0 575,000 575,000
2,264,558 0 1,128 2,265,686
a14 878 0 15,932 327,508
127,330 g 323,327 450,657
0 0 97 449 97,449
$16,951,542 $3,008,384 $4 564,227 $24.614,153
53,206,531 $2,135 $773,189 $3,981,854
Q 0 327,508 327,508
3,208,531 2,135 1,100,697 4,300,382
0 0 1,465,555 1,465,555
3,338,344 o 4] 3,338,344
1,094,589 s} Q 1,094,589
9.312,078 3,098,250 q 12,408,327
0 0 1,997,975 1,997,975
$13,745,011 $3,096,250 $3,463,530 20,304,791
$16,951,542 $£3,098,384 $4,564,227 $24,614,153
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Statement D
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, Louisiana
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total fund balances at June 30, 2008 - Governmental funds $20,304,791

The cost of capital assets purchased or constructed is reported as an

expenditure in governmental funds. The Statement of Net Assets includes

those capital assets among the assets of the School Board as a whole.

The cost ¢f those capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives

as depreciation expense to the various programs reported as governmental

activities in the Statement of Activities. Because the depreciation expense does

not affect financial resources, it is not reported int he governmental funds.
Cost of capital assets at June 30, 2008 47,108,659
Less - accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2008

Buildings (22,489,357)
Movable property (10,438,062) _ 14,181,240

The total of bond issuance costs is reported as expenditure in governmental
funds. The Statement of Net Assets includes these prepaid expenses as an
doas not affect financial resources, it is not reported in the governmental funds.
Prepaid bond issuance costs 81,446
Less - accumulated amortization as of June 30, 2008 (35,435) 56,011

Elimination of interfund assets and liabilities:
Due from other funds (327,508)
Due to other funds 327.508 0

Net assets {deficit) of the internal service fund rejporied as proprietary fund type in
the fund financial statements but included as governmantal activities in the
government-wide financial statement less interfund receivable eliminated
in the consolidation into the governmental activities.
Total net assets (deficit) $218,438

Long-term liabilities applicable to the School Board's governmental activities are not
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities.
liabilities. All liabilities, both current and long term, are reported in the Statement of
Net Assets. Long-term liabilites at June 30, 2008 are:

Compensated absences payable (967,603}
Bonds payable (1,803,000)
Interest payable (21,048) (2,791,651)

Net Assets at June 30, 2008 4 31,968 829

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral pant of this statement.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Statement ot Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Statement E

Special Sales Other Tatal
General Tax Governmental  Governmenial
Fund Fund Funds Fundg
REVENUES
Local sources
Taxes
Ad valorem taxes $922.71¢9 $0 $568,702 $1,491 422
Sales and use 4,371,434 1,061,322 4] 6,332,758
Interest earnings 342,61 65,691 95,605 503,906
Food services 0 0 315,832 315,832
Other 660,960 0 279,728 940,688
Staie sources
Minimum Foundation Program 27,973,031 0 2,339,511 30,312,541
Other 1,859,626 0 643,699 2,503,324
Federal sources 5877 0 9394 099 9,400 978
TOTAL REVENUES 36,136,356 2,027,013 13,638,075 51,801,444
EXPENDITURES
Instruction-
Regular programs 16,148,521 165,788 1,067,082 17,381,391
Special education programs 4,454,882 0 1,205,574 5,660,456
Vocaticnal education programs 916,594 0 947,803 1,864,398
All other programs 1,348,366 0 3,690,510 5,038,877
Support services program
Student services 5,009,607 170 590,909 5,600,686
Instructional staff services 1,026,287 16,690 874,436 1,917,412
General adminstration 894,504 0 52,872 047 465
School administration 2,330,857 19,493 129,084 2,479,434
Business services 530,510 0 41,777 572,287
Plant services 1,890,572 1,034,385 827,194 3,752,151
School food services 300,325 0 3.875,185 4,175,510
Debt service:
Principal retirement 0 0 171,000 171,000
Interest and fiscal charges a 0 58,401 58,401
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 34,851,115 1,236,526 13,531,827 45 619,468
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 1,285 241 790,487 106,248 2,181,976
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {(USES}
Sale of capital assels 5,682 54,000 0 59,682
Transfers in {out} 77,676 {198,000} 120,324 g
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES) 83,358 (144 000} 120,324 59,682
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 1,368,598 646,487 226,573 2,241,658
Fund balances at beginning of year 12,376,413 2,449,762 3,236,957 18,063,133
Fund Balances at end of year $13,745,011 $3,0096,250 $3,463,530 $20,304,791

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Total net changes in fund balances - governmental funds (Statement E)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays exceed depreciation and asset dispasitions in this period.
Capital outlays and depreciation expense for the year end June 30, 2008
are $1,300,930 and $1,238,463, respeclively. The net affect of these items is:

Repayment of bond principal and capital leases is an expenditure in the
Staterment of Net Assels. The net effect of these items is reflected,

Intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of workmans
campensation insurance activities to individual funds. The net revenue

of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.

In the Statement of Activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences

are measured by the amounts earned each year. In the governmental funds, however,

expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources
used. This year, vacation and sick time earned exceeded the amount used
by $105,618.

Interest on long-term debt in the Stalement of Activities differs from the amount
rejported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an
expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current
financial resources. In the Statement ofActivities, however, interest expense
is recegnized as the interest accrues, regardless when it is due.

The tatal of bond issuance costs is reported as an expenditure in governmentarl funds.
The Statemenl of Activities reflects the amortization of these prepaid expenses

over the life of the bonds. The net effect of this item is:

Changes in net assets of governmental activities (Statement B)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$2,241,658

62,467

171,000

(260,921)

{105,619)

5216

(6,858)



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Proprietary Fund - Governmental Activities

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and ¢ash equivalants

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts, salaries and cther payables

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Internal Service Fund

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

$682 497

682,497

464 058

464,058

218,438

— - 3218.438
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Proprietary Fund - Governmental Activities
internal Service Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in

Fund Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

OPERATING REVENUES
Premiums

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES

Insurance claims, premiums, and fees

Total operating expenses

Operaling income

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investments

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Total Net Assets - End of Year

$622 356

622,356

884 010

—

884.010

———— e

(261,654}

733
(260,921)

479,360

——

———5218.438

The notes to the basic financiail statements are an integral part of this statement.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHQOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Proprietary Fund - Governmental Activities

Internal Service Fund

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments for claims, premiums, and fees

Net cash providad by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

AECONCILIATION OF CPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Increase (decrease) in payable

Net cash provided by/(used) lor operating activities

Statement |

$622,356
(538,597)

82,759

733

83,492

599,005

r—— e

$682,497

$(260,921)

344,413

$83,492

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Statement of Fudiciary Assels and Liabilities

June 30, 2008

AGENCY
FUNDS

ASSETS
Current Agsets

Cash and cash equivalents $2,277,593

Investments 154,333

Receivables 1,637
TOTAL ASSETS $2,433,564
LIABILITIES

Deposits due others $2,433 564
TOTAL LIABILITIES $2,433,564

The notas ta the basic financial slatements are an integral part of this statement.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

INTRODUCTION

The Avoyelles Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (R.8.) 17:51 to provide
public education for tha children within Avoyelles Parish. The school board is authorized by R.S. 17:81 to
establish policies and regulalions for its own government consistent with the laws of the State of
Louisiana and the regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Secondary Education. The
school board is camprised of nine members who are elected trom thirteen districts for temrms of lour years.

The school board operates thirteen schools within the parish with a total enrollment of 5,928 pupils. The
school board serves an area of approximately 864 square miles. In conjunction with the regular
educational programs, some of these schools offer special education and/or adult education programs. In
addition, the school board provides transportation and school food services for the students.

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying financial statements of the Avoyelles Parish School Board have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmantal units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

This financial report has been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Gavernments, issued in
June 1899,

B. REPORTING ENTITY

GASB Statement No. 14, The Reporting Entity, established criteria for determining the governmental
reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions
of this Statement, the school board is considered a primary government, since it is a special purpose
government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent
of other state or iccal governments. As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally independent means that
the schoal board may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or
maodify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue bonded debt. The schoo!
board also has no component units, defined by GASB Statement No. 14 as other legally separate
organizations for which the elected school board members are financially accountable. There are no
other primary governments with which the schoo! board has a significant relationship.

C. FUNDS

The schaol board uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. Fund accounting is
designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions related to
certain school board functions and activities. A fund is defined as a separate fiscal and accounting entity
with a self-balancing set of accounts.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES (continued)
C. FUNDS (continued)

Funds of the school board are classified into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary,
as foflows:

Governmental Funds

Governmentai funds account for the school board’s general government activilies. These funds focus on
the sources, uses, and batances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the
various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may be used. Current liabilities are
assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between a governmental fund's assets
and liabilites is reparted as fund balance. In general, fund halance represents the accumutated
expendable resources which may be used to finance future period programs or operations of the school
board. The School Board reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - the primary operating fund of the school board and # accounts for all financial
resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds. The General Fund is
available for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred in accordancsz with state and
federal laws and according to school board policy.

Special Sales Tax Fund - accounts for a special sales and use tax of one-half of one percent.
The proceeds of the sales and use tax are used for facility improvements and repairs, paymenti of
bond indebtedness, maintenance, and operating expenses of the public school system.

Proprietary Funds
Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the
determination of net income is ngcessary or useful to sound financial administration. Propristary tunds
differ from governmental funds in that their focus is on measurement, which, together with the
maintenance of equity, is an important financial indicatar. Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise or
internal service. The school board has ane proprietary fund, which is an internal service fund.
Werkers Compensation Internal Service Fund - used to account for workers compensation
insurance for the employees of the Avoyelles Parish School Board on a cost reimbursement
basis.

Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the government in a trustea capacity or as an agent on behalf
of outside parities, including other governments. Agency funds are custodial in nature {(assets equal
liabilities) and do not present results of operations or have a measurement focus. The agency funds are
as follows:
School Activities Fund — accounts for assets held by the School Board as an agent for the
individual schools and school organizations,
Sales Tax Agency Fund — accounts for the parish-wide, ¢entralized collection of sales tax funds
and remittance of funds to respective taxing agencies.

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS/BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS)

The Statement of Net Assets (Statement A) and the Statement of Activities (Statement B) display
information about the reporling government as a whole. These statements include all the financial

activities of the school board, except for the fiduciary fund. Fiduciary funds are reparted only in the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets at the fund financial statement level.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Stalements (continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS/BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

The GWFS were prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accouniing. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assels and liabilities resulting from exchange or
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange occurs (regardless of when cash is
received or disbursed). Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from
nonexchange transactions are recognized in accardance with the requirements of GASB Statement No.
33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.

Internal Activities - The Waorkers Compensation Internal Service Fund provides services to the
governmental funds. Accordingly, this fund's activities were rolled up into the governmental activities.
Pursuant to GASB 34, as much as possible, the internal activities have been eliminated in order to avoid
the “grossing-up” effect of a straight inclusion. The interfund services provided and used are not
eliminated in the process of consolidation.

Program Revenues - Program revenues included in the Statement of Activities (Statement B) derive
directly from parties outside the school board’s taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues
reduce the cost of the function to be financed from the school board's general revenues.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses - The school board reporis all direct expenses by function in the
Statement of Activities (Statement B). Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
function. Indirect expenses of other functions are not allocated to those functions but are reported
saparately in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense, which can be specitically identified by
function, is included in the direct expenses of each function. Depreciation on buildings is assigned to the
"general administration” function due to the fact that school buildings serve multiple purposes. Interest on
general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of
Activities,

Fund Financial Statements (FFS)

Governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With
this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance
sheel. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances reports on the sources
(i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of
current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the govemrmental aclivities of
the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements
tnerefore inciude reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide statements and the statements for governmental funds. Fund financial stalements
report detailed information about the school board. The focus of governmental fund financial statements
is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate
column.

Governmental funds use the modified accruat basis of accounting. Under the moditied accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when ihey become both
measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determired and
available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. The school board considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days
after the fiscal year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
interest and principal payments on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are
expected to be liquidated with expendabie available financial resources. The governmental funds use the
following practices in recording revenues and expenditures:
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS/BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)

Revenues

Federa! and state entittements (which include state equalization and state revenue sharing) are
recorded as unrastricted grants-in-aid when available and measurabie. Expenditure-driven federal and
state grants are recorded as restricted grants-in-aid when the reimbursable expenditures have been
incurred.

Ad valorem taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are due and payable. Ad valorem taxes are
assessed on a calendar year basis, become due on November 15 of each year, and become delinquent
on December 31, The taxes are generally collected in December, January, and February of the fiscal
year.

Sales and use tax revenues are recorded in the month collected by the tax coilector.

Interest earnings are recorded when the investments have matured and the interest is available.

Revenues from rentals, leases, and oil royallies are recorded when earned.

Substantiaily all other revenues are recorded when received.

Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting, when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on tong-term debt, which are recognized when
paid in the debt service funds.

Salaries are recorded as paid. Unpaid salaries for nine-month employees who are paid over
twelve months are accrued at June 30". Substantially all other expenditures are recognized when the
related fund fiability has been incurred.

Other Financing Sources (Uses) - Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid (or
any other types, such as capital lease transactions, sale of fixed assets, debt extinguishments, long-term
debt proceeds, et cetera) are accounted for as other financing sources (uses). These cther financing
sources (uses) are recognized at the time the underlying events occur.

Deferred Revenues

The school board reports deferred revenues on its FFS balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when
resources are received by the school board before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are
received before the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when the schoal board
has a legal claim to the resources, the liabitity for deferred revenue is removed from the combined
balance sheet and the revenue is recognized.

Proprietary Fund is accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of
this fund are included on the balance sheet. The statement of changes in fund net assets presents
increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The statement of cash flows
provides information about how the school board finances and meets the cash flow needs of this internal
service fund. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized at the time the
liabilities are incurred.

Operating revenues and expenses: Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and
expenses fram nonoperating items, Operaling revenues and expenses generally resull from providing
services in connection with the fund'’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperaling revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary Fund - the agency fund is custodial in nature and does not present results of operations or
have a measurement focus. Agency tunds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOQOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. BUDGETS

The school board uses the following budget practices:

a) The proposed budget, for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, was made avaiable for public
inspection and comments by taxpayers, at the School Board office on July 20, 2007, with a public
hearing held on August 7, 2007.

B) The proposed budget, which included proposed expenditures and the means of financing them, was
published in the ofticiat journal 15 days prior to the public hearing.

¢) The budget is prepared and adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for all governmental funds. At year-end, all appropriations lapse.

d) Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders are recorded in crder to reserve that portion
of the applicable appropriation, is not employed. However, outstanding purchase orders are taken
into consideration belore expenditures are incurred in order to assure that applicable appropriations
are not exceeded. In addition, manthly budget reports are reviewed to ensure compliance with the
budget, where necessary, revisions to the budget are made.

e) In accordance with LRS-RS38:1301(A), budgeis are adopted for the general fund and all special
revenue funds.

fy The budget is adopled by fund, function, and department level. The superintendent of schools is
authorized to transter amounts between line items within any fund. However, when actual revenues
within a fund fail to meet budgeled revenues and/or actual expenditures within a fund exceed
pudgeted expenditures by five percent or more, a budget amendment is adopted by the School Board
in an open meeting. Program budgets are amended as funding is increased or decreased by the
granting agencies. Formal budget amendments for programs are not adopted by the board, as
spending is limited to funding made available by the program.

F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, time deposits, and
investments in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool. Cash equivalents include amounts in time
deposits and those investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the school
board may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with
state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under the laws of
the United States. In addition, local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in the Louisiana
Assel Management Pool, inc. (LAMP), a nonprofit organization formed by an initiative of the State
Treasury and organized under the laws of the Slate of Louisiana, which operates a local government
invesiment pool.

G. INVESTMENTS

Investments are limited by R.S. 33:2955 and the Schaol Beard's investment policy. [f the original
maturities of investments exceed 90 days, they are classified as investments; however, if the original
maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statemert No. 31, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments”, investments held at June 30, 2008 with original maturities
greater than one year are stated at fair value, except for the following as permitted under GASB
Statement No. 31;
Investments in nonparticipating interest-earning contracts, such as non-negotiable certificates of
deposit with redemption terms that do not consider market rates, are reporied using a cost-based
measure.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financiat Statements (continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
G. INVESTMENTS (continued)

The School Board reports, at amortized cost, money market investments and participating interest-
earming investment contracts that have a remaining maturity, at the time of purchase, of one year or less.
For purpose of classifications, the following definitions are used for investments:
Interest-earning investment contracts include time deposits with financial institutions (such as
certificates of deposit), repurchase agreements, and guaranteed investment contracts.
Money-market investments are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that include U.S.
Treasury obligations.

H. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods
provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as due from other funds or
due to other funds on the balance sheel. Short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund
receivables/payables.

i. ADVANCES TO OTHER FUNDS

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund ioan receivables are reparted as advances and are offset
equally by a fund balance reserve account, which indicates that they do not constitute expendable
available financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation.

J. INVENTORY OF SUPPLIES

Inventories are stated at cost, on the first-in, first-out basis. The costs of inventory items are recorded as
expenditures in the governmental fund types and expenses in the proprietary fund types when used.

K. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost if historical cost is not
available. Donated assels are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date
of donation. Historical cost was used to value the majority of the School Board's assets. The school
board maintains a threshold level of $1,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets.

Capital assets are recorded in the GWFS, but are not reported in the FFS. Since surplus assets are sold
for an immaterial amount when declared as no longer needed for public school purposes by the school
board, no salvage value is laken into consideration for depreciation purposes. All capital assets, other
than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Estimated
Description Lives
Land improvements 10 —- 30 years
Buildings and building impravements 20 - 30 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 -7 years
Vehicles 5 -7 years
Equipment 5 -7 years
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Annual Leave

The school board has the following policies relating to annual (vacation) leave, as adopted February 4,
2003: All 12-month employees earn from 12 to 24 days of annual leave each year, depending on length
of service with the School Board. Annual leave is earned monthly and is creditable at the end of each
fiscal year for the year's service, hased on the following schedule:

Length of Service Days per Month Annual Days
Less than 3 years of service 1 day 12 days
More than 3, but less than S years of service 1.25 days 15 days
Mocre than 5, but less than 10 years of service 1.5 days 18 days
More than 10, but less than 15 years of service 1.75 days 21 days
More than 15 years of service 2 days 24 days

Annual leave earned, is availabie for use in the following fiscal year, under the original “use it or lose it
policy” as adopted in 1981. Upon resignation, termination, or retirement, 12-month employees may elect
to use or be paid for banked time, up to 37.5 days. Additionally upon resignation, termination, or
retirement, 12-maonth employees may elect to use or be paid for days earned and unused from the prior
fiscal year and days earned in the current fiscal year, up 1o @ maximum of 48 days.

Sick Leave

All 12-month employees garn from 12 to 18 days of sick leave each year, depending on lengih of service
with the Schoal Board, 11-month empioyees earn 12 days of sick leave each year, 10-month employees
eam 11 days of sick leave each year, and 9-month employees earn 10 days of sick leave each year. Sick
leave can be accumulated without limitation. Upon retirement or death, unused accumulated sick leave
of up 1o 25 days is paid to the employee or 0 the employee's estate at the employee's current rate of pay.
Under the Teachers Retirement System of Louisiana, the total unused accumulated sick leave, including
the 25 days paid, is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned service.

Under the Lovisiana School Employees Retirement System, all unpaid sick leave, which excludes the 25
days paid, is used in the retirement benefit computation as earned servics.

Sabbatical leave may be granted for rest and recuperation and for professional and cultural improvement.
Any employee with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the school board, to one
semester or sabbatical leave after six or mare years of continuous service.

Any employee, wha has no remaining regular sick leave, may take up to ninety {90) days of extended sick
(eave in each six-year period of employment. This extended sick leave may be used for personal iilness
or iliness of an immediate family member. Any unused days during any six-year period of employment
shall not accumulate or carry forward into the next six-year period of employment. Any employee on
extended sick leave shall he paid 65% of the salary paid the employee at the time the extended sick
teave begins.

The schoot board's recognition and measurement criteria tor compensated absences follow:
GASB Statement No. 16 provides that vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar
characteristics should be accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned by the employees if both of the
following conditions are met:

a. The employees' rights {c receive compensation are atiributable to services aiready rendered.

b. It is probeble that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other
means, such as ¢cash payments at termination or retirement.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (continued)

GASB Statement No. 16 provides that a liability for sick leave should be accrued using one of the
following termination approaches:

a. An accrual for earned sick leave should be made oniy to the extent it is probable that the
benefits will result in termination payments, rather than be taken as absences due to illness or
other contingence, such as medical appointments and funerals.

b. Alternatively, a governmental entity should estimate its accrued sick leave liabilily based on
the sick leave accumulated at the balance sheet date by those employees who currently are
eligible to receive termination payments as well as other employees who are expected to
become eligible in the future to receive such payments.

The accounting for sabbalical leave depends on whether the compensation during the sabbatical is for
service during the period of the leave or instead, for past service. Sabbatical leave for service during the
periad of the leave should be accounted for in the pericd the service is rendered; g liability should not be
reported in advance of the sabbatical. Sabbatical leave for past service should be accrued during the
periods the employees earn the right to the leave if it is probable that the school board will compensate
the employees for the benefit through paid time off or some other means.

The entire compensated absence liability is reporied on the government-wide financial statements.

For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the
amount that is normally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources.
Compensated absences are reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured (ie: unused
reimbursable leave still outstanding following an employee’s resignation or retirement).

M. RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

For government-wide statement of net assets, net assels are reporled as restricted when constraints
placed on net asset use are either:

1. externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; and
2. imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted net assets repoarted in the statement of net assets are restricted through enabling legislation.

N. FUND EQUITY

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that
are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific
purpose. Designalions of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.
0. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from it that are

properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as
reductions of expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksvitle, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

P. SALES TAXES

The School Board collects a one per cent sales tax and a one-half per cent sales tax, as authorized by
LSA-R.S. 33:2737. The net proceeds of the one percent sales tax are dedicated to supplement salaries
of teachers and other school employees and for expenses of operating the schools. This tax was
approved by the voters on August 29, 1967, and has no expiration date. The proceeds from the one-half
per cent sales tax are dedicated to making capital improvements, funding bonded indebtedness, and
maintaining and operaling the public school system of Avoyelles Parish. This tax was approved by the
voters on April 9, 1877, for a period of 25 years. On November 17, 2001, volers renewed the one-half per
cent sales tax dedicated to making capital improvements, funding bonded indebtedness, and maintaining
and operating the public school system of Avoyelles Parish. The renewal is for 25 additiona! years and
expires in August 2027.

Q. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

The following individual funds had actual expenditures over budgeted appropriations for the year ended
June 30, 2008:

Qriginal Final Unfavorable
Fund Budget Budget Actual Variance
Public Health Serv Act Title XIX $283,624 $283,624 $408,582 {$124,958)
School Food Senvice 33,822,669 $3,822,669 $3,859,253 ($36,584)
Ward 4 School District Funds $20,000 $20,000 $28,143 ($8,143)
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
a. LEVIED TAXES

The School Board levies taxes on real and business property located within Avoyelles Parish's
boundaries. Property taxes are levied by the School Board on property vaiues assessed by the Avoyelles
Parish Tax Assessor and approved by the state of Louisiana Tax Commission.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem laxes:

Authorized Levied Expiration
Millage Miliage Date
Parishwide taxes:
Constitutional 3.62 3.62 Statutory
QOperational and Maintenance 4,80 4.80 2009
Special Operatignal and Maintenance 4.80 4.80 2009
Low: High: Date
District taxes:
Debt Senice 2.80 2.80 2012

9, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting
hank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the
fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at
all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the
pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable 1o both parties.

At June 30, 2008, the school board’s carrying amount of deposils was $15,243,481, (including certificales
of deposits of $6,237 889 and Louisiana Asset Management Poal {LAMP) investments of $799,381), and
the bank balance was $8,212.211.

These deposits were reported as follows:

Governmental internal Trust &
Funds Servica Agency Totals
Fund Funds
Demand deposits $5,219,617 $0 $2,882,594 $8,212.211
Inestments 5,832,236 0 1,205,034 7,037,270
Total $11,051,853 30 $4,197.628 $15,249,481
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHQOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Noles to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk: is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be
returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2008,
the schoal board has $14,450,100 in depasits {collected bank balances):

Depositaory Account Bank Balance
Insured $2,136,283
Collateralized:

Collateral held by pledging bank's trust

department not in the school system's name 12,313,817
Uninsured and uncollateralized 4]
Total Deposits $14,450,100

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized under the provisions of GASB
Statement 3, LA R.S. 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and seli
the pledged securities within 10 days of being naotifled by the school board that the fiscal agent has failed
to pay deposited funds upon demand. The School Board's policy regarding custodial credit risk is that
funds an deposit shall be collateralized an amount at all times equal to 100% by pledged “approved
securities” as specified by LA R.S. 39:1225, as amended, to protect the funds of the School Board.

At June 30, 2008, the School Board also had invested $759,381 in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool
(LAMP), a local government investment pool. In accardance with GASB Codification Section 150.126,
the investment in LAMP at June 30, 2008 is not categorized in the three risk categories provided by
GASB Codification Section 150.125 because the investment is in the pool of funds and, therefore, not
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or bock entry form. Due to the short term nature of the
LAMP portfolio and the immediate access at par feature, investments in LAMP are considered cash
equivalents by the School Board.

LAMP is adminisiered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of
Louvisiana. Oniy local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment in
its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of
public funds in shori-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and
other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in, in accordance with
LA- RS 33:2055.

LAMP is a 2a7-like investment pool. The following facts are refevant for 2a7 like investment pools:

Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAA by Standard & Poor's.

Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants’ investments in the pool are evidence by shares of the
pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not
evidenced by securities thal exist in physical or book-entry form. The School Board's
invesiment is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore no public
disclosure is required.

Concentration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the five percent disclosure
requirement.

Interest rate risk: 2a7-like investment pools are excluded from this disclosure requirement, per
paragraph 15 of the GASB 40 statements.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksvilie, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)

5. RECEIVABLES
The receivables of $2,716,343 at June 30, 2008, are as follows:
Special
General Rewenue
Fund Funds Total
Receivables:
Other $2,264,558 $1,128 $2,265,686
Total Receivables $2,264,558 $1,128 $2,265,686
Intergovernmental Receivables:
Federal $0 30 %0
State 127,330 323,327 450,657
Local 0 0 0
Total Intergovernmental Rec $127,330 $323,327 $450,657
6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (FFS)

A schedule of interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2008, is as follaws:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Special Sales Tax Fund %0
General Fund Non Major Governmental Funds 311,576
Non Major Govemmental Funds  General Fund 15,932
Totals $327,508

The purpose of the interfund assets/liabilities is 10 cover current year expenditures on cost reimbursement
programs until the reimbursement transactions are processed.

A schedule of interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Transferred In TransfersIn Transfers Out
General Fund $1,002,575 $924,899
Special Sales Tax Fund 0 198,000
Non Major Govemmental Fund 822 B95 802,575

$1,925,474 $1,925,474

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires 1o collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires 1o expend them and to use unrestricted revenues collected in the
genera! fund lo finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorization.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Firancial Statements (continued)

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2007 Additions Deletions 2008
Governmental Activities
Nondepreciable assets:
Land $6,777,874 30 $0 $6,777.874
Depreciable assets:
Buildings 27,689,121 0 0 27,689,121
Furniture and equipment 11,468,492 1,300,930 127,758 12,641,664
Total $45,935 487 $1,300,930 $127,758 $47,108,659
Less accumulated depreciation;
Buildings $21,919,773 $569,584 $0 $22,489,357
Furniture and equipment 9,896,941 568,879 127,758 10,438,062
Total $31,816,714 $1,238,463 $127,758 $32,927,419
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, net $14,118,773 $14,181,240

Cepreciation expense of $1,238,463 for the year ended June 3@, 2008, was charged to the following
governmental functions:

Instruction:;

Regular Education $167,308
Special Education 125,894
Vocational Education 92,167
Other Educational Programs 20,079

Support Services:
Student Services 128,649
Business Services 12,324
Plant Services 569,584
Student Transportation Services 92,791
School Food Services 29,667
Total $1,238,463
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
8. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Substantially all employees of ithe school board are members of two statewide retirement systems. In
general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and funchroom workers are members
of the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana; other employees, such as custodial personnel and bus
drivers, are members of the Louisiana School Employees’ Retirement System. These systems are cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by separate boards of trustees.
Pertinent information relative to each plan follows:

A. Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana (TRS)

Plan Description. The TRS consists of two membership plans: Regular Plan and Plan B. The TRS
provides retirement benefils as well as disability and survivor benefits. Ten years of service credit is
required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to become vested for disability and
survivor benelits. Benefils are established and amended by state statute. The TRS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the TRS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Teachers’ Retiremen! System ot Louisiana, Post
Office Box 94123, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123, or by calling (225) 925-6446.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 8.0% and 5.0% of their annual covered salary
for the Regular Plan and Plan B, respectively. The school board is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. The current rate is 16.6% of annual covered payroll for all membership plans. Member
contributions and employer contributions for the TRS are established by state law and rates are
established by the Public Retirement Systems’ Actuarial Committee. The school board's employer
contribution for the TRS, as provided by state law, is funded by the State of Louisiana through annual
appropriations, by deductions from local ad valorem taxes, and by remittances from the school board.

The school hoard's contributions to the TRS for the years ending June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006, were
$3,780,768, $3,086,918, and $2,996,929, respactively, equal to the required cantributians for each year.

B. Louisiana School Employees’ Retirement System (LASERS)

Plan Description. The LASERS provides retirement benefits as well as disability and survivor benefits.
Ten years of service credit is required to become vested for retirement benefits and five years to become
vested for disability and survivor benefits. Benefits are established and amended by state statute. The
LASERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplemeantary information for the LASERS. That repart may be aobtainad by writing to the Louisiana
School Employees’ Retirement System, Past Office Box 44518, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804, or by
calling {225) 925-6484.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 7.50% ot their annual covered salary and the
school hoard is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 18.1% of
annual covered payrol. Member contributions and employer contributions for the LASERS are
established by state law and rates are established by the Public Retirement Systems’ Actuarial
Committee. The school board’s employer contribution for the LASERS is funded by the State of
Louisiana through annual appropriations.

The schoo! board's contributions 1o the LASERS for the years ending June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006,
were $563,409, 3554,862, and $500,007, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
9. ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS FOR FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARIES

On-behalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries are direct payments made by an entity (the paying
agent) to a third-party recipient for the employees of another, legally separate entity (the employer entity).
GASB Statement No. 24 requires employer governments to recognize revenues and expenditures or
expenses for these on-behalf payments.

The State of Louisiana made pension contributions (regarding Professional Improvement Program)
direclly to the Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana on behalf of the School Beard in the amount of
$16,272. This amount was recognized as state revenue and a corresponding expendilure in the
applicable fund from which the salary was paid.

10. ACCOUNTS, SALARIES, AND OTHER PAYABLES

The payables of $4,445,912 at June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Special Non Major Total Internal

General Sales Tax  Gowernmental Governmental Senice

Fund Fund Funds Funds Fund
Salaries $2,349,757 $2,135 $729,128 $3,081,020 $0
Accounts 856,774 0 44,0680 900,834 464,058
Total $3,206,531 $2,135 $773,188 $3,981,854 $464,058

1. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended June 30, 2008:

Bonded Compensated
Debt Absences Total
L.ong-termobligations at July 1, 2007 51,974,000 $861,984 $2,835,984
Additions 0 117,792 117,792
Deductions ($171,000) ($12,173) (183,173)
Long-term obligations at June 30, 2008  $1,803,000 $967,603 $2,770,603

The following is & summary of the current {due in one year or iess) and the long-term (due in mare than
one year) portions of long-term obligations as of June 30, 2008:

Bended Compensated
Debt Absences Total
Current portion $180,000 $72,601 $252,601
Long-term portion 1,623,000 895,002 2,518,002
Total $1,803,000 $967,603 $2,770,603
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
11. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Ait principal and interest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by the annual ad
valorem tax levy on taxable property within the parish or by dedicated sales taxes, as indicated.
Payments of compensated absences and capital leases are paid from the general revenues of the
General Fund. At June 30, 2008, the school board has accumulated $1,508,564 in the debt service funds
for future debt requirements.

The bonds are due as follows:

Principal Interest

Year Ending June 30, Payments Payments Total
2009 180,000 59,940 239,940
2010 188,000 52,830 240,830
2011 194,000 45,336 239,336
2012 201,000 37,508 238,508
2013 160,000 27,314 187,314
2014-2018 880,000 46,931 926,931

Total $1,803,000 $269,859 $2,072,859

All school board bonds outstanding at June 30, 2008, for $1,803,000, are general obligation bonds with
maturities from 2009 to 2018 and interest rates from 3.45% to 9.0%. Bond principal and interest payable
in the next fiscal year are $180,000 and $59,940, respectively. The individual issues are as follows:

Final Interest
Original interest Payment to Principal Funding Purpose of
Bond Issue Rate Due Maturity Outstanding Source De bt
Ward 2:
February 1, 1992 $605,000.00 6.30%-9.00% 2/1/2012 31,710 193,000 Ad Valorem Capital
Construction
Certificate of Indebt.
April 30, 2003 2,110,000.00 3.45% 9/1/2017 238,149 1,610,000 Energy Savings Energy
Efficiency
Total Outstanding Bond issues $269,859 $1,803,000

In accordance with R.S. 39:562, the school board is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded
debt in excess of 35% of the assessed value of taxabie property. At June 30, 2008, assessed value of
taxable properly is $87,499,780, the statutory limit is $30,624,923, and ouistanding bonded debi totals
$193,000.

In addition, the school board is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt secured by sales
and use taxes in excess of 75% of the avails of the tax. As of June 30, 2008, the school board had no
outstanding bonded debt secured by sales and use taxes.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOQL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
12 CHANGES IN AGENCY FUND - DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS

A summary of changes in agency fund deposits due others follows:

Balance at Balance at
Beginning of Year Additions Deletions End of Year
Agency funds:
School activity accounts $681,977 $2,083,486 $2,071,374 $694 089
Sales tax agency fund 2,001,626 14,956,019 15,218,170 1,739,475
Total $2,683,_6_Q§__ $17,039,505 $17,289,544 $2,433,564

13, RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

Reserves is used to describe governmental fund "Fund Balances” indicates that a portion of the fund
balance is not available for expenditure or is legally segregated for a specific future use. The reserve for
debt service represents the portion of fund balance that has been reserved in the debt service funds tor
future payment of principal and interest on bonded debt.

Designations is used to describe the governmental fund "Fund Balances” indicates that a portion of fund
balance that has been segregated to indicate tentative plans for future financial resource use.
Designated fund balances may be changed and are subject 10 subsequent authorization before
expenditures can be made. The nature and purpose of these designations are explained as follows:

Designated for Contingencies: This amount represents a portion of fund balance that has been
designated to fund possible losses from tawsuits, self-insurance liability, and other risks.

Designated for Compensated Absences: This amount represents a portion of fund balance that has been
designated to fund legally required payments of compensated absences to eligible employees.

Other Non Major

General Gowernmental
Fund Funds

Designaied for:
Contingencies $3,338,344 $0
Compensated Absences 1,094,589 0

Resened for:

Debt Senice 0 1,465,555
Total $4,432 933 $1,465,555

14, LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

At June 30, 2008, the school board is involved in numerous lawsuits, seeking damages from the School
Board for various alleged injuries, discrimination, unpaid workmen’s compensation benefits, accrued
leave benefits, etc. In all cases, legal counsel for the School Board has indicated that the cutcome of the
litigation is unceriain at the present time and hence, the potential claims against the School Board that
are not covered by insurance are uncertain at this time.



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements {continued)
15. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 4 requires disclosure in financial statements of
a situation where one entity provides more than 10% of the audiled entity's revenua. The Minimum
Foundation funding provided by the $State of Louisiana to all public school systems in Louisiana is
primarily based on October 1 student coumt. For the year ended June 30, 2008, the State provided
$32,816,845 to the Avoyelles Parish School Board, which represents approximately 63.4% of the School
Board's total revenue for the year.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Avoyelles Parish School Board's risk management activities are recorded in the Workers
Compensation Seif-Insured Fund, an internal service fund. This fund accounts for the risk financing
activities of the School Board, but does not constitute a transfer of risk from the School Board.

Claims are paid by a third party administrator acting on behalf of the School Board, under the terms of a
contractual agreement. Administrative fees are included within the provisions of that agreement. The
Schoo! Board is protected against unanticipated catastrophic claims and aggregate loss by coverage
carried through Safety National Casualty Corporation, a commercial insurer licensed or eligible to do
business in Louisiana.

Coverage was in effect for specific occurrences exceeding $200,000 and aggregate retention at
$2,000,000. The amount of settlements for each of the past three fiscal years has not exceeded the
insurance coverage for each of the respective years.

The costs associated with this self-insurance plan are reported as inter-fund transactions to the extent of
the amounts actuarially determined. Accordingly, they are treated as operating revenues of the Internal
Service Fund and as operating expenditures of the General Fund and the Special Revenue Funds.

Changes in the workers’ compensation liability amounts for the vears ended June 30, 2008 and 2006
were:

Cument Year
Claims and
July 1, 2007 Changes in Claims June 30, 2008
Self-Insurance Liability Liability Estimates  Payments Liability
Workers' Compensation $119.645 351,002,747 $658,334 $464,058
Current Year
Claims and
July 1, 2006 Changes in Claims June 30, 2007
Self-Insurance Liability Liability Estimates  Payments Liability
Workers' Compensation $112,598 $377,747 $370,700 $119,645

Any additional potential for risk of loss, other than as described above, faced by the Avoyelles Parish
School Board is further described in Note 15 below.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
WITH LEGALLY ADOPTED ANNUAL BUDGETS

GENERAL FUND:

The general fund accounts for all activities of the School Board, except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
SPECIAL SALES TAX FUND

The Special Sales Tax Fund accounts for a special sales and use tax of one-half of one percent. The
praceeds of the sales and use tax are used for facility improvements and repairs, payment of bond
indebledness, maintenance, and operating expenses of the public schoot system,



REVENUES
Local sources
Taxes:
Ad valorem taxes
Sales tax
Earnings on investments
Other
Total local sources
Stale sources
Minimum Faundation Program
Other
Total state sources
Fedaral sources

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Regular programs
Special education program
Vocational education programs
All other programs
Support services program
Student setvices
Instructional staff services
General administration
School administration
Business services
Plant services
Student transportation service
School food service
Debt service payments:
Principal retirement
interest and bank charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess {deficlency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

Sale of fixed assets
Transfers in {out}

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Fund balances - July 1, 2006

Fund balances - June 30, 2007

Schedule 1
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance With
Final Actual Final Budget
Original Amended (Budgetary Positlve
Budget Budget Basis) (Negatlve)
$870,429 $870,429 $922,719 $52,290
3,574,153 3,750,000 4 371,434 621,434
267,403 267,403 342,611 75,207
303,621 383,621 660,960 267,339
5,105,607 5,281,454 6.297.723 1,016,270
26,251,344 27,535,871 27,973,021 437,160
1,771,387 1,771,397 1,859,626 88,228
28,022 741 28 307,268 29,832 656 525,388
12,789 222,269 5977 (216,312}
33,141 137 34,811,011 36,136,356 1,325,345
15,608,988 15,555,621 16,148,521 (592,500)
4,653,267 4,539,665 4,454,882 84,783
947,790 653,758 816,594 37,764
645,980 1,271,564 1,348,366 (76,803)
825,615 805,333 759,613 45,720
821,680 994,452 1,026,287 (31,835)
1,144,844 1,185,107 894,594 260,513
2,382,907 2,329,441 2,330,857 (1,4186)
500,607 524,343 530,510 (6,167)
1,757,787 2,397,029 1,890,572 508,457
3,799,544 4,195,220 4,249,994 (54,774)
736,892 697,692 300,325 397,367
0 0 0 0
0 0 4] 0
33,825,869 35,419,225 34,851,115 568,109
(684.732) (608.214) 1,285241 1,893,454
0 4] 5,682 5,682
686,681 621,691 77,678 (844,015}
£86 691 621,691 83 358 {538 333)
1,859 13,477 1,368,598 1,355 121
12,376,413 12,376,413 12,376,413 Q
$12,378,372 $12,389,890 $13,745.011 $1.355,121
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REVENUES
L.ocal sources
Taxes:
Sales tax
interest Earnings

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Instruction
Regular programs

Support services program
Pupil support services
School administration
Business services
Plant services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in {out)
Sale of fixed assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
NET CHANGES N FUND BALANCES

Fund balances - July 1, 2007
Fund balances - June 30, 2008

Schedule 2
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Special Sales Tax Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Variance With
Finai Actual Final Budget
QOriginal Amended (Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Bas!s) _(Negative)
$1,592,523 $1,582,523 $1,061,322 $368,799
8,000 £.000 85,691 57,691
1,600,523 1,600,523 2027013 426,490
65,500 65,500 165,788 (100,288}
0 0 16,860 16,860
29,500 29,500 19,493 10,007
0 0 0 0
1,583,810 1,583,810 1,034,385 540,425
1,678,810 __1.678810 1,236,526 442,284
(78,287) (78,287) 790,487 868,774
(292,996) {292,996) (198,000) 94,996
4] 0 54.000 {54 000)
{292,996) {292 996) {(144,000) 40,996
{371,283) {371,283) 646,487 1,017,770
2,449,762 _ 2,448,762 2,448,762 0
——{i2,078,479 $2.078.470 S3.006.280 . $1017770
49



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksviile, Louisiana

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

A. BUDGETS

The school board utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

a)

in May, the Superintendent submits to the School Board the proposed annual budget for the general
fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1¥. The proposed budget is made available for public
inspection and comments by taxpayers prior to September 15™. The School Board legally enacts the
budget through adoption. The only legal requirement is that the School Board adopt a balanced
budget, whereby total budgeted revenues and other financing sources (including fund balance) must
equal or exceed total budget expenditures and other financing uses. The basis of budgeting is the
same as GAAP,

Appropriations in the General Fund lapse at the end of the fiscal year, whereas encumbered
appropriations are carried forward to the following year. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted
or as amended by the School Board.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management conirol device during the year for the
General Fund. All budgets are operaticnal at the department level or project level. The
superintendent of schools is authorized to transfer amounts between line items and functions within
any fund. However, any additional appropriations that amend total expenditures of any fund require
School Board resolution. The effects of budget revisions during the year for the general fund were to
increase net revenues by $1,669,874 and increase nel expenditures by $1,593,356.
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SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY STATE LAW

(R.S. 24:514 - PERFORMANCE AND STATISTICAL DATA)



Aloysia C. Ducate, CPA, PC
Joan 8. Ducole, CPA, PC
DuCOte & ( 10mpany Hope J. Gagnard, CPA,_PC

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPOAT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT
ON SCHOQL BOARD PERFORMANCE MEASURES

To the Members af the
Avoyelles Parish Schoot Board
Marksville, Louisiana

We have perfarmed the procedures included in the Lowisiana Governmental Audit Guide and enumerated
below, which were agreed to by the management of the Avoyelles Parish School Board and the
l.egislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, solely to assist users in evaluating management's assartions
about the performance and statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of Any Parish
School Board and to determine whether the specified schedules are free of obvious errors and omissions
as provided by the Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE) Bulletin. This agreed-upon
procedures gngagement was performed in accordance with standards established by the Armerican
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of the Governmen{ Auditing Standards.
The sufficiency of these pracedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of the report.
Consequenlly, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below
either for the purposa for which this repart has been requested or for any other purpose.

Qur procedures and findings relate to the accompanying schedules of supplemental informaltion and are
as foliows:

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources
{Schedule 1}

1.

We selected a random sample of 25 transactions and reviewed supporting documentation to
determine if the sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are reported in the
proper amourts for each of the following amounts reported on the schedule:

Total General Fund Instructional Expenditures

Taotal General Fund Equipment Expenditures

Total Local Taxation Revenue

Total Local Earnings on Investment in Real Properly
Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes

Nonpublic Textbook Revenue

Nonpublic Transportation Revenus

MNo difterences noted.

Education Levels of Public School Staff {Scheduie 2)

2. We reconciled the total number of fuli-time classroom teachers per the schedule "Experience of
Pubtic Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers” {Schedule 8) to the combined total number of

ull-time classroom teachers per this schedule and to school board supporting payroll records as of
Ociober 1,

No differences noted.

1 [ Society of Low/siana
American Institute of v Mgnbers » .
Certified Public Accouniants Certified Public Accauntants

219 North Wishington = Post Office Box 309 » Marksville, Louisiana 71351 » (318) 253-6501 ¢ Fax (318} 253-0721



3. We reconcited the combined total of principals and assistant principais per the schedule "Experience
of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers” {Schedule 8) to the combined total of
principals and assistant principais per this schedula,

No differences noted

4. We obtained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification as of
October 1 and as reported on the schedula. We traced a random sample of 25 teachers to the

individual's personnel file and determine if the individual's education level was properly classilied on
the schedule,

No diiferences noted

Number and Type of Public Schools {Schedule 3)

5. We cbtained a list of schools by type as reported on the schedule. We compared the list to the
schools and grade levels as reported on the Titte 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies (CFDA
84.010) application and/or the National School Lunch Program (CFDA 10.555) application.

No difterences noted

Experience of Public Principals and Fuil-time Classroom Teachers {Schedule 4}

6. We o¢btained a list of full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by classification as of
Qctober 1 and as reported on the schedule and traced the same sample used in procedure 4 to the

individual's personnel file and determined if the individual's experience was properly classified on the
schedule.

No differences noted

Public Staft Data {Schedule 5)

7. We obtained a list of all classroom teachers including their hase salary, extra compensation, and
ROTC or rehired retiree status as well as full-time equivalent as reported on the schedule and traced
a random sample of 25 teachers to the individual's personnel file and determined if the individual's
salary, extra compensation, and full-time equivalents were properly included on the schedule.
No differences naoted

4. Wae recalculated the average salaries and full-time equivalants repcrted in the schedule,

No differences noted

Class Size Characteristics (Schedule 6}

9. Whs obtained a list of classes by school. schoal type. and class size as reported on the schedule and
reconciled school type classifications to Scheduie 3 data, as ohtained in procedure 5. We then traced

a random sample of 10 classes to the Qclober 1 roli books for those classes and determined if the
class was properly classified on the schedule,

No differences noted

Amerivan tnstitute of
Crrtified Public \ceountants

o Memhers o Suctety aof Louiviana

Certified Public Accoumants

219 North Washington e Post Office Box 309 o Markyville, Ié)éﬂ‘.\‘imm FI3ST 0 (318} 3516501 & Fux (318) 2530721


file:///temhers

Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) for the 21st Century (Schedule 7)

10. We obtained test scares as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported by the
testing authaority to scores reported in the schedule by Avayelles Parish Schoo! Board.

No differences noted

The Graduation Exit Exam for the 21st Century (Schedule 8)

11. We oblained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported by the
testing authority to scores reported in the schedule by Avoyelles Parish School Board.

No differences noted

The IQWA Tests/iLeap Tests {Schedule 9)

12. We obtained test scores as provided by the testing authority and reconciled scores as reported by the
testing authority to scores reported in the schedula by Avoyelles Parish School Board.

No differences noted

We were not engaged lo, and did not, perform an examination, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on management's asserttons. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have
been reported to you. :

This report is intended solely for the use of management of Avoyelles Parish School Board, the Louisigna
Department of Education, the Louisiana Legislature, and the Legislative Auditor, State of Louisiana, and
should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken responsibility for the

sufficiency of the procedures tor their purposes. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is
distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Ducote & Company

Marksville, Louisiana
December 23, 2008

American Institute of ¢ Members =

Socivty of Fouisiana
Certifind Public Accowntunts

Certified Public Accountants

219 North Washington s Post Office Box 309 & Marksviffe, fgﬁi.\'r'ana 7EIST & (FF8) 253-650) » Fae [318) 253.0872)



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Schedules Required by State Law (R.S. 24:514 - Performance and Statistical Data)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 1 - General Fund Instructional and Suppont Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue
Saurces

This schedule includes general fund instructional and equipment expenditures. [t also contains local
taxation revenue, earnings on investments, revenue in lieu of taxes, and nonpublic textbook and
transportation revenue. This dala is used either in the Minimum Foundation Program {MFP) formula or is
presented annually in the MFP 70% Expenditure Requirement Report.

Schedule 2 - Education Levels of Public School Staft

This schedule includes the certificated and uncertificated number and percentage of fuil-time classroom
teachers and the number and percentage of principals and assistant principal's with less than a
Bachelor's; Master's; Master’'s +30; Specialist in Education; and Ph, D or Ed. D. degrees. This data is
currently reported to the Legislature in the Annual Financial and Statistical Report (AFSR).

Schedule 3 - Numbher and Type of Public Schools

This schedule includes the number of efementary, middle/junior high, secondary and combination schools
in operation during the fiscal year. This data is currently reported to the Legislature in the Annual
Financial and Statistical Report (AFSRY}.

Schedule 4 - Experience of Public Teachers and Full-time Classroom Teachers

This schedule includes the number of years of experience in teaching for assistant principals, principals,
and full-time classroom teachers. This data is currently reported to the Legislature in the Annual Financial
and Statistical Report {AFSR).

Schedule 5 - Public School Staff Data

This scheduie includes average classrcom teachers salary using full-time equivalents, including and
excluding ROTC and rehired retiree teachers. This data is currently reported tc the Legislature in the
Annual Financial and Statistical Report (AFSR).

Schedule 6 - Class Size Characteristics

This scheduls includes the percent and number of classes with student enroliment in the following
ranges: 1-20, 21-26, 27-33, and 34+ students. This data is currently reported to the Legislature in the
Annual School Report (ASR).

Schedule 7 - Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP)

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes summary scores by district for
grades 4 and 8 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Proficient, Basic,
Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data.

Schedule 8 - The Graduation Exit Exam

This schedule represenis student performance testing data and includes summary scores by district for
grades 10 and 11 in each category tested. Scores are reported as Advanced, Proficient, Basic,
Approaching Basic, and Unsatisfactory. This schedule includes three years of data.

Schedule 9 - The iLeap Tests

This schedule represents student performance testing data and includes a summary score for grades 3,
5, 6, 7 and 9 and for each district. The summary score reported is the National Percentile Rank showing
relative position or rank as compared to a large, representative sample of students in the same grade
from the entire nation. The iLeap Tests began in 2006. This schedule includes three years of data.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Schedule 1

General Fund Instructional and Support Expenditures
and Certain Local Revenue Sources

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

General Fund Instructional and Eguipment Expenditures

General Fund Instructional Expenditures:
Teacher and Student Interaction Activities:
Ctassroom Teacher Salaries
Gther Instructionai Staff Activities
Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Instructional Materials and Supplies
Instructional Equipment
Totat Teacher and Student Interaction Activities

QOther Instructional Activilies

Pupil Support Activities
Less: Equipment for Pupil Suppont Activities
Net Pupil Support Activities

Instructional Staff Services
Lass: Equipment for Instructional Staff Services
Net Instructional Staff Services

Total Genearal Fund Instructional Expenditures

Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures

Certain Loca] Revenue Sources
Local Taxation Revenue:

Constitutional Ad Valorem Taxes
Renewable Ad Valorem Tax
Debt Service Ad Valorem Tax
Up to 1% of Collectians by the Sheriff on Taxes Other than School Taxes
Sales and Use Taxes
Total Locat Taxation Revenue

Local Eamings on Investment in Real Property:
Earmings from 16th Section Property
Earnings from Other Real Property
Total Local Earnings on (nvestment in Real Property

State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes:
Revenue Sharing - Constitutional Tax
Aevenue Sharing - Other Taxes
Hevenue Sharing - Excess Portion
Other Ravenue in Lieu of Taxes

Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes

Nonpublic Textbook Revenue
Nonpublic Transportation Revenue
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Schedule 3

$12,250,871
§33,103
5,933,926
383,224
543,505
60,756

$19,514,385

78,719
739,244
0

739,244
901,561
0

901,561

$17,810,656

$0

355,704

942 166

70,054

43,643

5,760,388

87171955
93,215
52,528

$145,743

2,646
7,018
0

0
59,684

824,338
$45,001



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Marksville, Louisiana

Schedule 4

Schedule 2
Education Levels of Public School Staff
As of October 1, 2007
Full-time Classroom Teachers Principals & Assistant Princlpals
Certificated Uncertlficated Certificated Uncertificated
Category Number | Percent | Number | Percent | Numbar | Percent | Number | Percent
Less than a Bachsloc's Degree 2 1% a 0% 0 0% a 0%
Bachelor's Degree 303 76% 0 0% 0 0% a 0%
Master's Degree 5¢ 13% 0 0% B 26% 0 0%
Master's Degree + 30 33 8% 0 0% 17 74% 0 0%
Specialist in Education 2 1% 0 0% 0% 0 0%
Ph. D. or Ed. D. 3 1% Q 0% 0 0% 0 0%
Total 395 100% 0 0% 23 100% 0 0%
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL. BCARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Schedule 3
Number and Type of Public Schools
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 5

Type

Number

Elementary

Middie/Jr. High

Secondary

Combination

Tolal

WiC | | ®

Note: Schools opened or closed during the fiscal year are included in this schedule.
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Schedule 6
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana
Schedule 4
Experience of Public Principals and Full-time Classroom Teachers
As of October 1, 2008
0-1Yr. 2-3 Yrs. 4-10¥rs. | 11-14¥rs, | 15-19 ¥rs. | 20-24 Yrs. | 25+ Yrs. Total

Assistant Principals 0 0 2 1 2 1 9
Principals 0 0 1 [ 1 5] 14
Classroom Teachers 33 19 70 48 52 61 114 395

Total 33 10 73 49 59 64 121 418
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana

Schedule 5
Public School Staff Data
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

All Classroom
Teachers

Scheduie 7

Classroom Teachers
Excluding ROTC
and Rehired Retirees

Average Classroom
Teachers' Salary
Including Extra Compensation $37.316.29

$37.128.64

Average Classrcom
Teachers' Salary
Excluding Extra Compensation $36,985.81

$36,760.77

Number of Teacher Full-time
Equivalents (FTEs) used in
Computation of Average Salaries 384.27

345.31

Note: Figures reported include ail sources of funding (i.e., federal, slate, and local) but exclude employee
benefits. Generally, retired teachers rehired to teach receive less compensation than non-retired teachers

and ROTC teachers receive more compens
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Schedule 8
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana
Schedule 6
Class Size Characteristics
As of October 1, 2007

Class Siza Range
1-20 21-26 27 -33 34+

School Type Percent Number | Percent Number | Percent Number | Percent | Number
Elementary 31% 205 49% 328 20% 134 0% 0
Elementary Activity Classes 29% 41 54% 77 17% 25 0% 0
Middle/Jr. High 19% 37 36% 72 43% 86 2% S
Middle/dr. High Activity Classes 83% 54 5% 3 3% 2 9% 8
High 62% 413 20% 132 18% 118 0% 2
High Activity Classes 88% 127 3% 5 4% 5] 5% 7
Combination 100% 9 0% Q 0% Q 0% 0
Combination Activity Classes 0% 0 0% "] 0% 0 0% 0

Note: The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of
classes at various grade levels. The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students and maximum
enroliment in grades 4-12 is 33 students. These limits do not apply to activity classes such as physcial
education, chorus, band, and other classes without maximum enrollment standards. Therefore, these classes
are included only as separate line items.
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Schedule 9
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana
Schedule 7
Louisiana Educational Assessment Program (LEAP) for the 21st Century
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
District Achiavement Level English Language Arts Mathematics
Results 2008 2007 2008 2008 2007 2006

Students Numberl Parcent | Number| Percent Nurnberl Percent | Number | Percent Number[ Percent | Number | Percent
Grade 4
Advanced 17 4% 10 % 3 1% 18 4% 6 2% 9 2%
Mastery ag 23% 60 16% 40 B% a0 21% 30 8% 69 13%
Basic 194 46% 186 48% 238 46% 195 46% 199 52% 216 42%
Approaching Basic 78 18% 88 23% 124 24% B2 19% 89 23% 117 23%
Unsatisfactory 38 9% 41 1% 110 21% 40 10% 60 16% 104 20%

Total 425 100% 385 101% 516  100% 425]  100% 384 101% 515 100%

District Achievement Level Science Soclal Studies
Results 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Students Number| Percent Numberl Percent ] Number | Percent | Number | Percent Number[Percent Number | Percent
Grade 8
Advanced 8 2% 5 1% 1 0% 0 0% 1 0% 2 0%
Mastery 42 10% 38 10% 17 4% a7 T% 23 6% 16 4%
Basic 133 33% 131 33% 142 34% 143 35% 163 42% 164 4%
Approgching Basic 128 32% 137 35% 161 39% 149 37% 126 32% 128 3%
Unsatisfactory 95 23% 80 20% 93 23% 85 21% 77 20% 105 25%

Total a0s] 100%| av2l oo%|  a1a] 100%|  404] 100%]  aso] 100%]  ats] 100%

61



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Marksville, Louisiana

Schedule 8

The Graduation Exit Exam for the 21st Cenlury
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 10

District Achievement Leval

English Language Arts

Mathematics

Results 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Students NumberJ Percent Number[F'ercent NumberIF’ercent Number | Percent NumberIT’ercent NumbeflPercent
Grade 10
Advanced 2 1% 7 2% 2 1% 20 6% 29 8% 16 5%
Mastery 33 10% 34 9% 47 13% 44 13% 50 13% 67 19%
Basic 1473 44% 187 50% 199 56% 187 48% 178 48% 163 47%
Approaching Basic 93 28% 102 27% 66 19% 58 18% 69 19% 49 13%
Unsatisfactory 57 17% M 1% 39 11% 50 15% 45 12% 55 16%
Total 1658 100% N 99% BSﬂ 100% 328 100% 371 l 100% 350| 100%
District Achievement Level Science Social Studies
Results 2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
Students Number| Percent | Number | Percent | Number [ Percent | Number | Percent Number | Percent { Number | Percent
Grade 11
Advanced 8 2% 9 3% 9 3% 1 0% 1 0% 1 1%
Mastery 50 14% 39 13% 38 10% 14 4% 16 5% 29 7%
Basic 159 45% 134 45% 128 37% 192 55% 180 61% 177 43%
Approaching Basic 95 27% 75 25% 108 3% 97 27% €5 22% 99 24%
Unsatisfactory 42 12% 42 14% 63 18% 50 14% 37 12% 101 25%
Total 354 100% 299  100% 344 99% 354  100% 299  100% 407  100%
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:
IMPROVING AMERICA'S SCHOOLS ACT | OF 1994 - TITLE | PROGRAM

Title | of the Improving America's School Act 1994 {JASA) accounts for the funds from a program by which
the federal government provides block grant funds to the schoot system based on a per pupil allocation
for audio-visual material, equipment and library resources to improve skills in reading, language arts, and
math for deprived children from low income families.

IMPROVING AMERICA'S SCHOOLS ACT | OF 1994 — TITLE Il PROGRAM

Title Il of the Improving America's School Act 1994 (JASA) accounts for the funds from a program by
which the federal government provides block grant funds to the school system based on a per pupil
allocation designed to prepare, train, and recruit how guality teachers in core curriculum academic areas
and schools.

RURAL EDUCATION ACHEIVEMENT PROGRAM

The REAP (Rural Education Achievement Program) Funds are used to suppiement funds received under
other Federal programs in rural areas, providing additional resources to carryout out the programs.

PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE ACT - TITLE XIX FUND

The School Nurse Program - Title XIX Fund accounts for the funds from a program to provide school
nurse services to students of the school system.

SPECIAL EDUCATION FUND

The Special Education Fund accounts for the funds from a federally financed program of free education in
the least restrictive environment to children with exceptionalities.

ADULT EDUCATION FUND

The Adult Education Fund accounts for the funds from a federally and slate financed, state-administered,
and locally operated program to provide adult instruction leading to high school diploma.

DRUG FREE SCHOOLS FUNDS

The Drug Free Schools Fund accounts for the funds form a federal program used to develop a drug
education program.

FOQD PRESERVATION FUND

The Food Preservation Unit Fund accounts for the food preservation centers that are financed through
user fees and stale funds. The centers provide educational skills for students as well as providing a
community service.



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHQOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

SPECIAL MAINTENANCE FUND

The Special Maintenance Fund accounts for the avails of a 10-year, five mill, parishwide property tax
dedicated to maintain, construct, and remodel school buildings and grounds.

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICE

The School Food Service Fund accounts for the operation of the food service program for the parish
school system.

CAPITAL QUTLAY FUND

The Capital Outlay Fund accounts for monies designated by the school board for repairs to various
school facilities.

WARD NO. 4 SCHOOL DISTRICT FUND

The Ward No. 4 Schootl District Fund accounts for the sales proceeds from assets sold from that district.
These funds are to be used toward capital improvements to other facilities.

WARD NO. 9 SCHOOL DISTRICT FUND

The Ward No. 9 School District Fund accounts for the sales proceeds from assets sold from that district.
These funds are to be used toward capital improvements to othar facilities.

WARD NO. 6 SCHOOL DISTRICT FUND

The Ward No. & School District Fund accounts for the sales proceeds from assets seld from that district.
These funds are 10 be used toward capital iImprovements to other facilities.

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION FUND

The Vocational Education Fund accounts for funds from a federal program which provides vocational
education programs.

TITLE V FUND

Title V accounts for revenues received from a federal grant to support local education reform efforts,
which are consistent with the statewide education reform efforts, leading to the accomplishment of the
National Educational Goals.

LA AGRICULTURAL SCIENCE SCHOOL FUND

The La Ag Science School Fund accounts for the funds to operate a Type [V charter school (Louisiana
Agriculture Sciences Charter School) providing an education with emphasis in the agricultural sciences.



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued)

CLASSROOM BASED TECHNOLOGY FUND

The Ciassroom Based Technology Fund accounts for funds received to improve student academic
achievement with the use of technology in schools.

READING FIRST

Reading First accounts for revenues received from a federal grant to ensure that alf children in America
learn to read well by the end of the third grade. The funding provides specialized educational services to
children in the first through third grade.

JAG FUND

JAG (Jobs for America’'s Graduataes) accounts for revenues received from a federal grant which provides
funding for drop out prevention and work force preparation for at risk youths.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS:

WARDS DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

These debt service funds accumulate monies for payment of the remaining bond issue. The debt was
incurred by the respective Ward to construct or improve school buildings and other school facilities. The
bond issue is financed by special tax levies on the property within the territorial limits of the respective

Wards. The batances of the individual ward debt issued at June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Ward No. 2 $275,000

ENERGY CONSERVATION CERTIFICATES OF INDEBTEDNESS FUND

The Energy Conservation Cenlificates of Indebtedness Fund accounts for the issuance of $2,110,000 in

certificates of indebtedness for the payment of expenditures to make the schaol facilities more energy
efficient.
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. Schedule 14
. AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
® Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
. Fund Balances - Budget {GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
. For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
. 1ASA IASA
. Title | Title Il
Fund Fund
. Crlginal and Variance Qriginal and Varlance
Final Favorable Final Faveorable
. Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
. REVENUES
Local sources
. Taxes
. Ad valorem taxes 50 $0 $0 %0 g0 30
Sales and use 0 o] 0 0 0 0
. Interest earnings o) 0 0 0 0 0
Cther Q 0 0 0 0 0
. State sources
Minimum Foundation Program 0 o 0 0 0 0
@ COther 0 0 0 0 0 0
. Federal sources 2,987 258 2,987 258 8] 565,613 565,613 4]
. TOTAL REVENUES 2987 258 2,987 258 0 565,613 565,813 0
. EXPENDITURES
Instruction-
. Regular programs 0 0 0 0 0 0
Special education programs 7 7 0 0 0 c
. Vocational education programs 0 a 0 0 0 c
All other programs 2,342,047 2,342,047 0 409,981 409,981 0
. Support services program
Student services 22,906 22,906 0 o] o 0
. Instructionat staff services 228,762 228,762 0 9¢,498 90,498 0
General adminstration 5,762 5,762 0 0 0 0
o School administration 3,178 3,178 0 0 0 0
. Business services 29,141 29,141 0 1,824 1,824 0
Plant services 48,692 48 692 0 0 0 0
. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,880,495 2,680 495 0 502,303 502,303 Q
. Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 306,763 306,763 0 63,310 63,310 0
. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transters in (out) (308,763) (306,763) 0 (63,310) (63,310) 4]
. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {306,763} (308,763) 0 {63,310) (63,310} 0]
. Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
. Fund balances at beginning of year 0 0 Q o) 0 a
. Fund Balances at end of year $0 30 30 30 30 $0
@
®
®
@
@
@
o
. 73
®
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. Schedule 15
. AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
. Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
. For the Year Ended June 3¢, 2008
' Rural Ed Public Health
. Achiavement Serv Act
Fund Title XIX
. Original and Variance Original and Varlance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
. Budget Actual (Unfavorahbis) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)}
. REVENUES
@ Local sources
Taxes
® Ad valorem taxes $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Sales and use 0 0 0 0 0 0
. Interest earnings o 0 ] 1,000 3,630 2,630
Other 0 0 0 240,000 271,483 31,493
. State sources
Minimum Foundation Program Q 0 0 Q 0 0
. Other o] o] 0 0 c 0
. Federal sources 185,239 185,239 Q 0 0 0
. TOTAL REVENUES 185,239 185,239 0 241,000 275,122 34122
@ EexPENDITURES
Instruction-
. Regular programs 0 0 0 ¢ 0 0
. Special education programs o] o} 0 2,000 8,708 {6,708)
Vocational education programs (o] 0 Q 0. 0 g
® Alt other programs 164,241 164,241 0 0 114 (114)
Support services program
. Student services 0 0 0 281,624 396,901 {(115,277)
instructional staff services 0 0 0 0 2476 (2,476)
. General adminstration 0 0 0 0 ags5 (385)
. Business services 8,262 8,262 4] Q 0] o
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 172,503 172,503 o] 283,624 408,582 {124 958)
. Excess (deficiency) of
. revenues over expenditures 12,736 12,736 0 (42,624) (133,460) {90,838)
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
. Transfers in (out) (12,736) (12,736) 0 0 100,000 100,000
. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {12,736) {12,736) 0 t] 100,000 (100,000)
. Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
. expenditures and other sources (uses) 0 0 Q (42,624) (33.460) 9,164
. Fund balances at beginning of year ] 0 0 140,519 140519 0
. Fund Balances at end of year 30 %0 30 $97,895 $107,059 $9,164
. 74



REVENUES

. Local sources
Taxes

. Ad valorem taxes

Sales and use

. Interest sarnings
Other

. State scurces

. Minimum Foundation Program
Other

. Federal sources

@ TOTAL REVENUES

. EXPENDITURES
. Instruction-

Regular programs

. Special education programs
Vocational education programs
. All other programs
Support services program
. Student services
Instructional staff services
¢ General adminstration
Business services
. Plant services
. TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess (deficiency) of
. revenues over expendituras

. OTHER FINANCING SOLRCES (USES]

. Transfers in {out)

. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

@ Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
. Fund balances at beginning of year

. Fund Balances at end of year

Schedule 16
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Special Adult
Education Education
Fund Fund
COriginal and Variance Original and Variance
Final fFavorabig Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorabla}
50 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
Q 0 G Q 0 0
Q 0 c Q 0 0
0 0 e 37,724 37,724 4]
1,487,233 1,487,233 0 57.759 57.759 0
1,487,233 1,487,233 0 95 483 95,483 Q
0 o] 0 8] 0 o]
983,248 983,248 0 o 0 0
o] ¢ 0 0 o] Q
0] ¢ 0 73,264 73,264 0
56,201 56,201 o] 0 0 0
267,624 267,624 0 21,220 21,220 0
3,058 3,058 0 1,000 1,000 0
2,561 2,551 0 0 0 0
17 581 17,581 0 0 0 Q
1,330,264 1,330,264 g 95,483 95 483 0
156,869 156,969 0 0 0 0
{156,963) (156,969} g Q Q 0
(156,969) {156,969} 0 0 g 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
$C $0 30 $0 $C $0
75




. Schedule 17
. AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
® Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
® Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
® For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
. Drug Frea Special
. Schools Maintenance
Fund Fund
. QOriginal and Variance Criginal and Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
. Budaet Actual {Unfavorable} Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
. REVENUES
Local sources
Taxes
. Ad vaiorem taxes $0 %0 $0 $455,000 $500,730 $45,730
Sates and use 0 0 0 0 0 0
@  Interesteamings 0 0 a 5,000 38,410 33,410
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0
. State sources
Minimum Foundation Program 0 0 ¢ 0 0 Q
. Other 0 0 ¢ 0 9] 0
. Federal sources 47,267 47,267 [ 0 3,407 3,407
. TOTAL REVENUES 47267 47 267 0 480.000 542 546 82 546
@ EXPENDITURES
Instruction-
Regqular programs ¢ 0 0 30,000 25,375 4,625
Special education pregrams C 0 0 o} 0 0
. Vocational education programs e 0 0 Q ¢] 0
All other programs 2,680 2,680 0 0 0 0
. Support services program
. Student services 36,424 36,424 o] 0 o] 0
Instructional staff services 342 342 0 0 0 0
. General adminstration 100 100 0 12,500 18,019 (3,519)
School administration 5,831 6,83 0 0 0 0
. Plant services 0 0 0 534,018 504,619 29,397
. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 48,378 46,378 0 576,518 546,012 30,504
Excess (deficiency) of
. revenues over expenditures 889 389 Q (116,516) (3,466) 113,050
. DTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
. Transfers in (out) (889) (B89) 0] 0 10,236 10,236
. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {889) (889) 0 0] 10,236 10,2386
. Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) a ¢ 0] {116,516) 6,770 123,286
: Fund balances at beginning of year Q 0 a 823,982 829,982 0
. Fund Balances at end of year 30 30 %0 $713,466 $836,752 $123,286
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. Schedule 18
. AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
‘ Fund Balances - Budget {GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type

o For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
®
. School Food Service Fund Capital Outlay Fund
. Variance Original and Variance

Original Final Favorablae Final Favorable
. Budget Budget Actual  (Unfavorable} Budget Actual (Unfavorahble)
QEVENUES
.Jc:al sources

Taxes
. Ad valorem taxes $0 $0 0 $0 &0 50 $0

Sales and use o 0 0 0 0 Q [#]
. Interest earnings 8,000 8,000 0 (8,000) 500 3,045 2,545

Food services 325,617 325,617 315,832 (8,785) 0 0 0

Other 214 214 214 0 0 Q o

tate sources

Minimum Foundation Program 441,042 441,042 441,042 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 o O 0 v}

ederal scurces 2730648 2730648 2,721,540 {9,108) 0 0 0
@
‘OTAL REVENUES 3,505 521 3,605,521 3,478,628 (26,893) 500 3,045 2,545
‘w

Instruction-

. Regular programs ¢ 0 C 0 0 0 0
Special education programs 0 o] ¢ 0 0 0 ¢
. Vocational education programs 0 0 0 4] 4] 0 0
All other programs o 0 0 0 0 0 0

. Support services program
Plant services 0 0 0 0 20,000 0 20,000
Schoo! food services 3,822,669 _3,822869 _3,859.253 {36,584) 0 0 0
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,822,669 3822669 3859253 (36,584) 20,000 4] 20,000

Excess (deficiency) of
. revenues over expenditures (317,148) (317,148) (380,625) (63,477) (19,500} 3,045 22,545

THER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES)

Transfers in {out) 410,592 410,592 402,062 (8,530) 0 0 0
Q)TAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (US 410,592 410,692 402,062 (8,530} 0 (Y] o]
!xcess (deficiency) of revenues over
. expenditures and other sources {(uses) 93,444 93,444 21,437 (72,007) (19.500) 3,045 22,545
.md balances at beginning of year 580,217 580,217 580,217 8] 116,852 116,852 0
..Il'ld Balances at end of year $673 661 $673,661 $601,653 $(72,007) $97,352 $119,897 $22 545
®
®
@

@
o
@
®
o
. 77
®
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule 19

Ward 4 Ward 9
School Dist School Dist
Fund Fund
Original and variance Original and Varlance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budget Actuai {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
@ Local sources
Taxes
o Ad valorem taxes $0 $C $0 $0 $0 $0
Sales and use 0 0 0 o] 0 0
@  interest eamings 1,200 3,974 2,774 25 25 0
Other 0 3,000 3,000 0 0 0
. State saurces
. Minimum Foundation Program 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0 0 1]
. Federal sources v] 8] g 9 0 0
‘ TOTAL REVENUES 1.200 6,974 5774 25 25 0
@ exrenDITURES
Instruction-
. Regular programs 0 0 V] 0 0 0
. Special education programs ¢ 0 0 0 0 0
Vocational education pregrams c 0 0 c Q 0
. All other programs 0 0 0 c 0 0
Support services program
. Plant services 20,000 28,143 (8,143) g 0 0
. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,000 28,143 {8,143) 0 c 0
Excess (deficiency) of
‘ revenues over expendilures (18,800) (21,169) (2,369) 25 25 0
. QOTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
. Transfers in (out) (Y] (78 362) 78,362 1] 0 0
. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES) 8,963 0 78,362 0 0 0
. Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources {uses) (18,800) (21,169) 75,993 25 25 0
. Fund balances at beginning of year 137,524 137,524 9] 1,604 1,604 8]
: Fund Balances at end of year $118,724 $116,355 $75,993 $1,630 $1,630 30
. 78



REVENUES

. Local sources
Taxes

. Ad valorem taxes

Sales and use

. Interest earnings
Other

. State sources

. Minimum Foundation Program
Qther

. Fedaral sources

@ 1OTAL REVENUES

@ cxpenDITURES

instruction-
. Regular programs
. Special education programs
Vocational education programs
. All other programs
Support services program
. Student services
Instructional statf services
o General adminstration

Plant services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
. Excess (deficiency) of
. revenues over expenditures

. OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (LISES)

Transfers in {out)

. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

. Fund balances at beginning of year

. Fund Balances at end of year

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
@ expenditures and other sources (uses)

Schedule 20
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Schedule ot Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budgel (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Ward 6 Vocational
Scheol Dist Education
Fund Fund
Original and Variance Original and Variance
Final Favorable Final Favaorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actuai {Untavorable)
50 %0 50 80 50 0
0 o) o O 0 o
273 273 0 o 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 Q 0 Q 0 0
0 Q 0 110,756 110,758 4]
273 273 0 110,756 110,758 0
0 0 C Q Q 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
(o} 0 0 82,576 82,576 0
a 0 0 0 0 o
0 0 C 8,300 9,300 0
o 0 0 1,556 1,558 0
0 0 0 2,050 2,050 0
897 897 0 0 ¢ 0
897 897 0 105,482 105,482 0
(624} (624) 0 5,274 5,274 0
0 0 0 (5,274) (5,274) 0
5,963 0 0 (5,274) (5,274) 0
(624) {624) 0 0 0 0
7,958 7,958 0 0 0 0
$7,334 $7.334 $0 30 30 $0
79




. Scheduie 21
. AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOQOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
. Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
. Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Ravenue Fund Type
. For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
. LA Ag
. Title V Science Sch
Fund Fund
. Original and Variance Original and Variance
Final Favorable Finat Favorable
. Budget Actual {Unfavorabla) Budget Actual {Untavorable)
. REVENUES
@ Local sources
Taxes
® Ad valorem taxes $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Sales and use 0 0 0 0 0 0
. Interest earnings 0 0 0 0 10,925 10,925
Other 0 0 0 0 0 0
. State sources
. Minimum Foundation Program 0 0 0 1,895,040 1.898,469 3,429
Other Q 0 C [¢] o] [H]
. Federal sources 10,018 10,018 0 0 0 0
. TOTAL REVENUES 10,018 10,018 0 1,885,040 1,909,394 14,354
. EXPENDITURES
Instruction-
. Regutar programs o 0 0 861,684 860,488 1,196
. Special education programs Q a 0 51,238 52,727 (1,489)
Vocational education programs 0 0 0 325,458 321,787 3,671
. All other programs 8,592 8,592 0 0 0 0
Support services program
. Student services 0 0 0 54,600 69,176 {14,576)
Instructional staff services 257 257 0 78,582 27.584 50,998
. General adminstration 50 50 o 17,000 17,000 o
School administration 0 ¢ 0 133,799 119,074 14,725
. Plant services 0 0 0 203,600 162,087 41,513
. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,899 8,699 1] 1,725,961 1,629,924 $6,037
Excess (deficiency) of
® revenues over expenditures 1,119 1,119 0 169,079 279.470 110,391
. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE
. Transfers in {out) (1,118} {1,119 0] (225,024} (236,691) (11.657)
. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 5844 {1,119) 0 (225.024) (236,691) {11,667)
@ Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver
. expenditures and olher sources (Uses} 0 0 0 (55,945) 42,779 98,724
. Func balances at beginning of year 0 0 0 169,138 169,139 0
. Fund Balances at end of year 30 30 30 $113,194 $211,018 $98,724
. 80



. Schedule 22
. AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
® Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
® Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
’ For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
. Classroom
. Reading Based
First Tech Fund
. Original and Variance Ortginal and Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
. Budget Actual (Untavorabie) Budget Actual {Untavorable)
. REVENUES
. Local sources
Taxes
. Ad valorem taxes 80 $0 $0 50 %0 30
Sales and use 0 0 o} 4] Q Q
. Interest eamings 0 0 0 0 ] 0
Qthar 4] 0 ¢ 0 0 0
Stale sources
Minimum Foundation Program ¢ 0 a o 0 0
. Other ¢ o] Q 555,674 555,974 0
. Federal sources 1,170.471 1,170,471 0 42 851 42,851 0
. TOTAL REVENUES 1,170,471 1,170,471 ¢ 598,825 598 825 0
@ ExPENDITURES
Instruction-
. Regular programs 152,209 152,200 0 26,038 26,038 v
Special education programs 160,885 160,885 0 o 0 0
. Vocational education programs 0 o 0 533,441 533,441 0
. All other programs 681,861 681,861 0 7,690 7,690 0
Suppor! services program
. Instructional staff services 152,160 152,160 0 31,856 31,656 0
General adminstration 4,860 4,860 0 0 a) 0
. TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,151,975 1.151 975 Q 598 825 598,825 0
@  Excess (deficiency) of
. revenues over axpenditures 18,496 18,496 4] (0) {0} 0
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
. Transifers in (out) {18,496) (18,4086) Q ¥ o 4]
. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) {18,496} (18,4886) 0 0 0 0
. Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
. expenditures and other sources (uses) 0 0 Q (0) (1)) 0
. Fund batances at beginning of year Q 0 a 0 4] 0
@ Fund Baiances at end of year $0 30 $0 $(0) $(0) $0
. 81




REVENUES
. Local sources
Taxes
Ad valorem taxes
Sales and use
Interest eamings
Other
. Stals sources
Minimum Foundation Program
. Other
. Federal sources

@ TOTAL REVENUES

@ ExPENDITURES

Instruction-
Regular programs
Special education programs
Vogcational education programs
All other programs

Support services program
Instructional statf services
Plant services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expendilures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USE

Transfers in {out)

. Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver
expenditures and other sources (us

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund Balances at end of year

Schedule 23
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Food
Preservation JAG
Fund Fund
Original and Variance Original and Variance
Final Favorabie Finai Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$C 30 $0 $0 $C 50
0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
5,021 5021 0 0 0 0
0 a ] 0 0 0
0 0 (4] 50,000 50,000 (o}
0 0 Q 3,600 3,600 [o]
5,021 5021 Q 53,600 53,600 0
Q 0 4] 2,673 2,873 0
0 0 o] Q 4] 0
0 0 0 Q Q 0
4] 0 0 0 0 0
4] (] 0 50,300 50,300 0
17,623 17,623 0 Q 0 0
17,623 17,623 Q 53273 53,273 Q
(12,601) (12,601) 0 327 327 0
12,601 12,601 4] 0 0 0
{12,601} {12,801} 0 327 227 0
0 4] o] 0 0 0
$(12,601) $(12,601) $0 8327 §327 30
82



. REVENUES
. Local sources
Taxes
. Ad valorem taxes
Sales and use
. interest earnings
Other
. State sources
Minimum Foundation Program
Other
Federal sources

. TOTAL REVENUES

. EXPENOITURES

Instruction-
® Regular progiams
Special education pragrams
® Vocational education programs

All other programs
. Support services program
General adminstration
. Plant services
. Debt service;
Principal retirement
. Interest and bank charges
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
. Excess {deficiency) of
revenugs over expenditures
®

QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in (out)
. TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)

. Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
. expenditures and cother scurces (uses)

. Fund kalances at beginning of year

. Fund Balances at end of year

Schedule 24
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP BASIS) and Actual
Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund Type
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Wards Energy Conserv
Bond Cert of Indebt
Fund Fund
Original and Variance Original and Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable} Budgst Actual {Unfavorable)
$54,371 $67,973 $13.602 $0 50 $0
0 c 0 4] 0 0
787 3,608 2,821 31,715 31,715 0
0 0 0 0 Q 0
¢ 0 g a g o]
0 0 0 0 ¢ 0
¢] 1,987 1,987 0 Q 0
55,157 73568 18,411 31,715 31,715 0
Q 0 0 G 0 o
0 0 o o ¢ o
0 0 0 0 0 0
a 0 0 0 0 0
0 2,688 (2.588) Q 0 0
26,000 0 25,000 153,000 58,900 95 000
47,000 41,000 6,000 312,472 130,000 182,472
11,180 11,190 0 56,468 47,211 5,256
83,190 54778 28,412 522,840 236,112 288,728
(28,033) 18,790 46,823 {491,125) (204,397) 286,728
0 9] 0] 198,000 398,000 (200,000)
0 g 0 198,000 398,000 {200,00Q)
(28,033) 18,790 48,823 {293,125) 193,603 486,728
122,146 122 146 Q 1,131,016 1,131,016 0
$94,113 $140,936 $46,823 $837 891 $1,324,619 $486,728
83




AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

AGENCY FUNDS

SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND

The activities of the various individual school accounts are accounted for in the Schcol Activity Agency
Fund. While the accounts are under the supervision of the School Board, they belong to the individual
schools or their student bodies and is not available for use by the School Board.

SALES TAX AGENCY FUND

The Sales Tax Agency Fund accounts for the coilection and distribution of a one and one-half percent
sales and use tax levied by the School Board, a one percent sales and use tax levied by the Avoyelles
Parish Police Jury, a one-halt percent sales and use tax levied by the Avoyslles Parish Sheriff's Office,
and other sales and use taxas as levied by various municipalities in Avoyelles Parish.



ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Depasits due others

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Schedule 25
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BCARD
MARKSVILLE, Louisiana
FUDICIARY FUNDS
Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities
June 30, 2008
School Activity Sales Tax
Agency Agency Total
Fund Fund
$539,755 1,737,838 2,277,593
154,333 0 154,333
0 1.637 1,637
$694, 089 $1,739,475 $2,433,564
594 089 1,739,475 2,433 584
$694,089 $1,739,475 $2,433,564
84



ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Deposits due others

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Schedule 26
AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, Louisiana
FUDICIARY FUNDS
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions Juna 30, 2008
$2,5640,861 17,026,275 17,289,544 2,277,593
141,166 13,167 o] 154,333
1,677 680 o] 1,637
$2,683,603 $17.039,502 $17.289,544 82,433,564
2,683,603 _ 17,039,502 17,289,544 2,433,564
$2 683 603 $17,039.502 $17.289.544 $2.433 564
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SCHCOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

Avoyelles High

Bunkie Elementary
Bunkie Middle

Bunkie High

Cottonport Elementary
Lafargue Elementary
Mansura Middle
Marksville Elernentary
Marksville Middle
Marksvilie High School
Plaucheville Elementary
Riverside Elementary
FFA Federation

Student Incentive
Panther Pride Club
Future Arts

LaSAS

Parish Testing Program
Fifth Ward Food Preservation
Drug Free Programs

vy Mae Scholarship
Rapides Foundation
Fiderwoad Preserving Grant
Office Staff

AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Schedule 27
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Agency Fund
Schedule of Changes in Deposit Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deductions June 30, 2008
$102,099 $216,320 $240.239 $78,180
10,077 40,815 41,492 9,400
1,715 39,029 39,130 1,614
27,484 135,132 142,722 19,894
32,689 62,966 63,240 32,415
31,410 126,134 136,070 21,474
42,923 42,577 42,025 43,475
39,742 130,264 133,112 36,894
44 625 53140 55,530 42,235
54,035 293,782 290,485 62,332
16,795 86,146 81,657 21,284
53,510 83,033 83,655 52,888
151,400 108,538 83,567 176,371
1,007 21 0 1,028
15,268 151,629 148,231 20,666
56 1 6 51
33,288 175,534 157,378 51,444
6,185 7.425° 8,061 5,549
32 1,230 1,262 0
390 8 0 398
11,281 544 1,211 10,614
4,638 594 0 5,232
0 5,033 5,000 33
1,330 2,377 3.089 618
$681,979 $1,767,272 $1,755,162 $694,089
86



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Sales Tax Agency Fund

Schedule of Changes in Deposit Balances

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

DEPOSIT BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

Additions:
Sales tax collections
Interest earnings

Total Additions
Total beginning balance and additions

Reductions:
Translers to:
General Fund:
Sales tax
Sales tax administrative allowance
Special Sales Tax Fund:
Sales tax
Municipalities:
Avoyelles Parish Police Jury
City of Marksville
City of Bunkie
Town of Simmesport
Town of Cottonport
Viltage of Moreauville
Town of Mansura
Village of Hessmer
Village of Plaucheville
Avoyelles Parish Sheriff
Others:
Revenue Recovery District

Total Reductions

DEPOSIT BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

15,153,433

118,797

4,255,589
136,614

1,937,355

3,089,921
2,779,538
858,256
298,921
124,671
58,033
298,495
27,497
56,317
1,518,984

94,191
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$2,001,627

15,272,230

17,273,857

15,534,382

__51.739475_



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Schedule of Capital Assets by Source

June 30, 2008 and 2007

Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings
Furniture and equipment

Total Capital Assets

Investment in Capital Assets by Source:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
School Food Service
Drug Free Schools
Adult Education
Food Preservation
IASA Title |
Special Education
IASA Title Il
Vocational Education/Home Economics
Tech-Prep
Title VI
LA Ag Science School

Schedule 29
CAPITAL ASSETS
2008 2007
$6,777,874 $6,777,874
27,689,121 27,689,121
12,641,664 11,468,494
$47,108,659 $45,935,489
$36,451,194 $36,124,852
1,541,514 1,469,234
7,660 7,660
12,221 12,221
9,900 9,900
1,519,096 1,267,773
1,358,004 1,268,603
61,169 61,169
795,712 773,627
418,258 7,836
2,212 2,212
4,931,719 4,930,502
$47,108,659 $45,935,489
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHQOOL BOARD Schedule 30
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

COMPENSATION PAID BOARD MEMBERS

The schedule of compensation paid to school board members is presented in compliance with House
Concurrent Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. The compensation of
school board members is included in the general administrative expenditures of the General Fund. In
accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 17:56, the school board members have elected the monthly
payment method of compensation. Under this method, each member of the school board receives $540
per month, and the president receives $630 per month for performing the duties of his office.

Board Member Office Held Compensation
Ms. Sheila Blackman-Dupas $6,480
Mr. Ronald Deloach President (eff 1/1/07) 7.155
Mr. Freeman Ford 6,795
Dr. James Guillory Vice Pres (eff 1/1/07) 6,670
Mr. Ricky Juneau 6,480
Mr. Van Kojis 6,660
Mr. John Lemoine 6.525
Mr. Carlos Mayeux President (eff 1/1/08) 7.155
Ms. Lizzie Ned Vice Pres (eff 1/1/08) 6,760
Total $60,680
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

REPORTS REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The foliowing pages contain the report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting
based on an audit of general purpose financial statements performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.




Aloysia C. Ducote, CPA, PC
Joan 8. Ducote, CPA, PC
DuCOte & ( ‘Ompany Hope J. Gagnard, CPA, PC

Certified Public Accountanis

REPORAT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Members of the
Avoyelles Parish School Board
Marksville, Louisiana

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Avoyelles Parish School Board, for the year
ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our raport thereon dated December 23, 2008. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards. issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

tn planning and performing our audit, we considered Avayelles Parish Schasl Board's internal control
over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the etfectiveness of the Avayelles
Parish School Board's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Avoyelles Parish School Board's internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or aperation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstaternents on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control
deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, autharize, record, process, or report
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is
Mmore than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control We consider the
deficiency described as {tem 08-02 in the accompanying schedule ot findings and questioned costs to be
a significant deficiency in internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resulits in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the entity's internal contral.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However. we believe that the significant
deficiency described above is not a material weakness.

. . o Mambers * Society of Louisiana
Cerﬁ,‘gg gzgiiﬂ:il;tnf:);nts 9 Certified Public Accountants
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Members of the School Board
Page 2

Compliance and Qther Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Avoyelles Parish School Board's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance wilth certain provisions
of laws, regulations. contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion cn
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed two instances of noncompliance that are required to be

reported under Government Auditing Standards, and which are described in the accompanying schedule
of indings and questioned costs as itemsa 08-01 and 08-02.

This report is intended for the information and use of the School Board Members and the management of
lhe Avoyelles Parish Schooi Board. the State of Louisiana, Federal granting agencies, holders of
Avoyelles Parish School Board bonds, and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, and is not
intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report
is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this
report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Ducote & Company

Marksville, Louisiana
December 23, 2008

American Inatitute of o MeMBers o Socicty of Louisiana
Certified Public Accountanits Certified Public Accountanis

219 North Washington * Post Office Box 302 * Marksville, Louisiana 71351 = (318) 253-6501 » Fax (318) 253-0721



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SCHEDULES
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2008

REPORTS REQUIRED BY
OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (OMB) CIRCULAR A-133

The following pages contain reports on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and on
compliance with requirements applicable to each Major Program and internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133



Aloysia C. Ducote, CPA, PC
o S. Ducote, CFPA, PC
Ducote & Company o et 0

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS

To the Members of the
Avoyelles Parisn School Board
Marksville. Louisiana

We have audited the general-purpose finangial statements of the Avoyelles Parish School Board, for the
year ended June 30, 2008, and have i1ssued our report thareon dated December 23, 2008. Qur audit was
performed for the purpose of forming an opinian on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a
whole,

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit cof the
general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated. in all material respects, in
relation to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole,

Ducote & Company

Marksville, Louisiana
December 23, 2008

American Institute of o Members ¢ Society of Louisiana
Certified Public Accountants 92 Certified Public Accountants

219 North Washington » Post ()ffice Box 309 ¢ Marksuville, Louisiana 71351 ¢ (318) 253-6501 » Fux (318} 253-0721



AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Schedule 31
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For Year Ended June 30, 2008

PASS-
FEDERAL GRANTOR FEDERAL THROUGH
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ CFDA GRANTOR'S FEDERAL
PROGRAM OR CLUSTER TITLE NUMBER NUMBER EXPENDITURES
United States Department of Agriculture
Passed through Louisiana Dept of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:

School Breakfast Program 10553 = N/A $702,002

National School Lunch Program 10555 " N/A 1,847,683
Passed through Louisiana Dept of Agriculture:

Food Distribution 10.550 N/A 171,765
Total Depariment of Agricuiture 2,721,540
United States Department of Education
Passed through Louisiana Dept of Education:

Adult Education - State Grant Program 84.002 02-0344-06 57,759

Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 * S010A050018 2,987,258

Special Education 84.027 * 28-06-50-05 1,466,790

Spegcial Education - Preschool 84.173 28-06-80-05 20,443

Vocational Education-Basic Grants to States 84.048 28-02-05C 110,756

Sale & Drug Free Schoot-State Grant 84.186 Q186A050019 47 267

Innovative Ed Program Strategies 84.298 S5298A50018 10,018

Educational Techology Grant 84.318 28-06-4 05 42,851

Reading First Grant 84.357 * 28-06-RF 05 1,170,471

Rural Ed Achievement Program (REAP) 84.358 28-06RE 05 185,239

Title Il 84.367 S367A070017 565,613

Revenue in Lieu of Taxes N/A N/A 11,371
Total Depariment of Education 6,675,836
United States Department of Health & Human Services
Passed through Louisiana Dept of Health & Hospitals:

Temp Asst for Needy Families 93.558 TANF-JAG 3,600
Total Federal Expenditure Awards $9,400,976

* .
Denctes a major program

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For Year Ended June 30, 2008

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the
School Board and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stales,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presenied in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial
statements.

NOTE 2 - SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the School Board provided no federal awards to
subrecipients.
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Aloysia C. Ducote, CPA, PC
Joan 8, Ducote, CPA, PC
DuCOte & Company Ho E;a;. Ga :6:;;, CPA, PC

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WiTH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGHAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE iN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Members of the
Avoyelles Parish School Board
Marksville, Louisiana

Compliance

We have audiled the compliance of the Avayelles Parish School Board with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OQMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended Jure 30, 2008.
Avoyelles Parish School Board's major federal programs are identifiad in tha summary of auditor's resuits
section of tha accompanying schedule ot findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of Avoyelies Parish School Board's management. Qur rasponsibility 15 to express an
opinion on Avoyelles Parish School Board's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133,
Audits of Slate and Local Goverrments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred ta abave that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a lest basis,
evidence about Avoyelles Parish School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. QOur audit does not provide a legal determination of
Avoyelles Parish School Board's compliance with those requiremants.

in our opinion, the Avoyelles Parsh Schoof Beard complied, in all material respects, with the

requirements referred to above that are applicable (o each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30. 2008.

Internal Contrel Over Compliance

The management of the Avoyelles Parish School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulatiors. contracts and grants
applicacle to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Avoyelles Parish
School Board's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and matenal
effect nn a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinton on compliance. but not for the purpcse of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly. we dn not express an opinion an the
atfectiveness of the Avoyelles Pansh Schoal Board's intarnal contral over compliance.

American Institute of » Mffgb"” . Society of Louisiana
Certified Public Accountants Certified Public Accountants

218 Nurth Wushington * Post Qffice Box 309 » Marksuille, Lonisigna 71351 » (318} 253-650! » Fux (318) 253-0721



Amerivan Institute of e Members o
Certified Public Accountants

Members of the School Beard
Page 2

A canfrol deficiency in an entity's internal cantrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a control does not allow management ar emplayess, in the normal course of perfarming their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
on atimely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combiration of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federat program such that there is more than a
remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is
maore than inconsequential wiil not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal contral.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency. or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote iikelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program will nat be prevented or detected by tha entity's internal control.

QOur consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or maleria! weaknesses. We did not identity any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we cansider to be material weaknesses, as defined above

This report is intended for the information and use of tha Schoo! Board Members and the management of
the Avoyelles Parish School Board, the State of Louisiana, Federal granting agencies, holders of
Avoyelles Parish School Board bonds, and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, and is not
intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report

is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this
report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

Ducote & Company

Marksville, Louisiana
December 23, 2008

Soviety of Louisicng
Certified Public Accounfants

219 Nurth Washington « Past (fice Box 309 e Marksville, Lowisiana 71351  (J18) 253-6501 & Fax (318} 253-4721
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Schedule 32
Schedule of Audit Results, Findings, and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008
Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes no
Other conditions X___yes no
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yas no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness{es) identified? yes X_no
Reportable condition(s) identified not
Considered to be material weakness(es) yes X__ none reported
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance
For major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
To be reported in accordance with
Circular A-133, Section .510(a) ves X__ho
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.553 School Food Service
84.010 Title |
84.027 Special Education
84.357 Reading First
84.367 Title Il
Doliar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee X yes no
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Schedule 32
Schedule of Audits Results, Findings, and
Questioned Costs (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section lI-Financial Statement Findings

08-01 Performance Based Energy Contracts

Criteria

The Avoyelles Parish School Board entered into a performance-based energy efficient contract
in 2003 with TAC, which allowed for a stipulated savings provision for water usage. This
stipulated savings provision is in violation of the performance-based energy efficient contracts as
provided for governmental entities by LA R.S. 33:4547.1-3

Condition
The stipulated savings porticn of the performance based energy contract currently in place is in
violation of state law.

Context

As a result of AG Opinion 07-0002 and the precedent set by 18" Judicial District Court in
Siemens Building Technologies, Inc vs |berville Parish School Board, it has been determined that
stipulated savings clauses in performance based energy contracts are a violation of LA R.S.
33:4547.1-3

Effect
This is a violation of slate faw.

Cause

When the contract was agreed upon and entered into in 2003, the AG Opinion and court case
referred to above had been rendered. As a result of the AG Opinion and the lawsuit, it has come
to the attention of the School District and its professional advisors that the stipulated savings
portion of the agreement in the contract is in violation of LA R.S. 33:4547.1-3.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the contract be amended to comply with Louisiana Revised Statutes and
that it incorporate the necessary provisions so that the contract be in compliance with state law.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

Management has met with the contract consultant and monitoring company {TAC) and legal
counsel is currently drafting the contract amendments to bring the contract into compliance with
state law. The parities to the contract have verbally agreed to the amendments and they are
awaiting the completed amendment for final signature.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD Schedule 32
Schedule of Audits Results, Findings, and
Questioned Costs (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Section li-Financial Statement Findings (continued)

08-02 Failure to submit financial statements timely
Criteria
In accordance with Louisiana State Law, the School Board's annual financial statements must be
filed with the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor within six months of year end.

Condition
The annual financial statements were not filed with the State of Louisiana Legislative Auditor
within the six months deadline.

Context

Due to the interruptions caused by Hurricane Gustav, the auditors work schedules were
interrupted and resulted in a delay in the ability to schedule and complete the field work as
originally planned. This resulted in the audit not being completed and delivered within the six
months time frame; however, a request for an extension of time to deliver the audit was
requested and received from the Legisiative Auditor, extending the date to January 30, 2009.

Effect
The financial statements were not filed in time to meet the six months filing deadline.

Cause

The effects of Hurricane Gustav and the related disasters which occurred in September 2008,
resulted in delays and resulting rescheduling of the audit team’s work schedule . Consequently,
the audit was not able to be delivered within the six months time frame,

Recommendation
It is recommended that state imposed deadlines be adhered to baring any unforeseen
circumstances.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

The delay of the release of the audit was unforeseen and all efforts were made to prevent the
delay in filing the audit report. The auditing firm and management will continue to do all that is
necessary and within their control to submit the annual financial statements by the required due
date.

Section lll - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There are no findings related to internal controls or compliance applicable 1o federal awards and there are
no guestioned costs.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
MARKSVILLE, LOUISIANA
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Corrective
Fiscal Year Action
Finding Taken
Initially (Yes, No,
Ref No. QOccurred Description of Finding Pantially)

Schedule 33

Planned
Corrective Action/
Partial Corrective

Action Taken

Section | - Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements

07-01 June 30, 2007 Record retentian Yes

07-02 June 30, 2007 Timely submission of Partially
financial statements

No exceptions noted
in current year fest

Extension requested
in current year due to
disasters occurring
during year

Section I} - internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards

None

Section Il - Management Letter

None
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Avoyelles Parish School Board
Statistical Section
Table of Contents

This part of the Avoyelles Parish Schocl Beard's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Schoo! Board's cverall financial
heafth.

Contents Table Page
Financial Trends A-E 101
These schedules contain trend informalion to help the reader

understand how the School Board's financial performance and
well-being have changed over time

Revenue Capacity F-H 106
These schedules contain inforrmation to help the reader assess the
govemment's most significant local revenue sources, sales tax,
and property tax

Debt Capacity 1-M 108
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the government'’s current levels of outstanding debt
and the govemment's ability to issue additional debt in the future

Demagraphic and Economic Information N-R 114
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help
the reader understand the environment within which the govermnment's
financial activites take place

Qperating infomration S-T 119
These schedules contain service and infrastruclure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the School Board's financial
report refates to the services the School Board provides and the
activities it performs

QOther Information U 121

Schedule of Insurance in Force

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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AVOYELLES PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Marksville, Louisiana TABLE P

Attendance Data
Fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 through June 30, 2008

Fiscal Number of Average Daily Percent of
Year Graduates Membership Change
2008 272 6151 0.71%
2007 294 6195 -7.29%
2006 346 6682 5.00%
2005 312 6343 -2.45%
2004 325 6502 -1.50%
2003 300 6601 -2.48%
2002 389 6501 -2.48%
2001 369 6938 -4.43%
2000 405 7250 -1.56%
1998 354 7361 -3.25%

Source: LA Department of Education, Bulletin 1472 and Avoyelles Parish
School Board Student Information System
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